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A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Commissioners, 
South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc., 

Houma, Louisiana. 

We have audited the accompanying fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities and each major fund of the South Centi'al Planning & Development 
Commission, Inc. (the "Commission") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related 
notes to the fmancial statements, which collectively comprise the Commission's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to 
the prepaiation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standai ds, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedmes to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the fmancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fmancial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity's uitemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinions. 

P.O. BOX 2168 • HOUMA, LA^70361-2168 | 985.868.0139 

507 ST. PHILIP STREET, SUITE D • THIBODAUX, LA 70301 I 985.447.5243 | BOURGEOISBENNETT.COM 



Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities 
and each major fund of the South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc., as of June 30, 
2018, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and 
the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, Loan Fund, and Grant Fund for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementaiy Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management's Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of the Commission's Proportionate Share of the 
Net Pension Liability and Schedule of Commission Contributions on pages 4 thr ough 13, 55 and 56, 
respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although 
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary infonnation in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquires, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the puipose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Commission's financial statements as a whole. The listings of Principal 
Officials on pages v and vi and Combining Balance Sheets and Combining Statements of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Loan Programs and Grant Programs and Schedule of 
Compensation Benefits and Other Payments to Agency Ftead or Chief Executive Office, on pages 
57 thr ough 69, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, on pages 75 
thiough 76, is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Costs Principles and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and is also not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. 



The Combining Balance Sheets and Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Loan Programs and Grant Programs, Schedule of Compensation, Benefits 
and Other Payments to Agency Head or Chief Executive Officer and the Schedule of Expenditures 
of Federal Awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such 
infoimation has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including compaiing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic fmancial statements 
or to the fmancial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
infoimation is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

The listing of Principal Officials has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic fmancial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued om- report dated 
December 20, 2018 on our consideration of South Central Planning & Development Commission, 
Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contiacts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of 
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over 
fmancial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditiim Standards in considering South Central Planning & 
Development Commission's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Certified Public Accountants. 

Houma, Louisiana, 
December 20, 2018, 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

South Central Planning and Development Commission, Inc. 

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Administrative Officer are responsible for the overview and 
analysis of the financial activities of South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. (the 
Commission) for the year ended June 30, 2018. The naiTative provided is designed to intioduce the 
financial highlights and offer an overview of our financial statements. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the cunent year's 
activities, resulting changes and facts known to date. This naiTative includes a government-wide 
financial analysis of revenues, expenses and changes in the net position. Further detail offers our 
readers a financial analysis of the Commission's fimds consisting of the governmental fund types 
and proprietary funds. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Assets and defened outflows of resomces of the Commission exceeded its liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources at June 30, 2018 by approximately $34,420,000 (net position). As of June 30, 
2018, net position included approximately $30,524,000 of net position resti icted to the loan program 
assets. Net investment in capital assets amounted approximately $5,046,000 as of June 30, 2018. 
The remaining umestiicted net position of the Commission is in deficit by approximately 
$1,150,000. 

The Commission's total unrestricted deficit net position is due to the business-type activities being 
in a deficit net position of approximately $1,282,000 as of June 30, 2018. The Commission's 
unrestricted net position of governmental activities was approximately $131,000 as of June 30, 
2018. 

The Commission's governmental activities' change in net position was an increase of approximately 
$16,079,000 for the year ended June 30, 2018 and business-type activities was a decrease 
approximately $34,000 for the year- ended June 30, 2018. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to seiwe as an intioduction to South Central Planning & 
Development Commission's basic financial statements. South Central Planning & Development 
Commission's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements and 3) notes to the financial statements. This 
report also contains supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements 
themselves. 



(Continued) 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements, reported in Exhibits A and B, are designed to be similar 
to private-sector businesses in that all governmental and business-type activities are consolidated 
into columns which add to a total for the primaiy government. These statements combine 
governmental funds' current financial resources with capital assets and long-term obligations. Also 
presented in the government-wide financial statements is a column for the business-type activities 
of the primary government. 

The Statement of Net Position, reported in Exhibit A, presents information on all the Commission's 
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and defened inflows of resources, with the 
difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as 
a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Commission is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities, reported in Exhibit B, presents information showing how the 
government's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in the assets are 
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing 
of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items 
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. For example, earned but unused vacation 
leave result in cash flows for futm e periods. The focus of the Statement of Activities is on both the 
gross and net cost of various activities, which are provided by the government's general dues 
assessment and other revenues. This is intended to summarize information and simplify the user's 
analysis of costs of various governmental services and business-type activities. 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Traditional users of governmental financial 
statements will find the fund financial statements presentation more familiar. The focus of the fund 
financial statements is on major funds, rather than generic fund types. All funds of the Commission 
can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

Governmental Funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. The governmental major fund 
presentation in Exhibits C thiough I is presented on a sources and uses of liquid resources basis. 
This is the manner in which the financial budget is typically developed. Unlike the government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term outflows of 
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal 
yeai\ Such infoimation may be useful in evaluating a government's cunent financing requirements. 
The Commission has five governmental funds and each is presented as major funds: General Fund, 
Loan Fund, Grant Fund, Capital Projects Fund, and the Debt Service Fund. 



(Continued) 

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

Proprietary Funds include enterprise funds on the fund financial statements illustrated in Exhibits 
J through L. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations financed and operated in a manner 
similar to private business enterprises. The enteiprise funds are presented as major funds - the 
Regional Building Code Fund and the Information Technology Fund. 

While the business-type fund financial statements for the enterprise fund (See Exhibits J through L) 
is the same as the business-type column, the government-wide financial statement and the 
governmental funds total column requires a reconciliation because of the different measurement 
focus which is reflected on the page following each governmental fund statement (see Exhibits D 
and F). The flow of current financial resources reflects inter-fund tr ansfers as other financial sources 
and uses as well as capital outlay expenditures. The reconciliation will eliminate these transactions 
and incorporate the capital assets and long-term obligations into the governmental activities column 
in the govenrment-wide statements. 

Capital Assets 

General capital assets include buildings, furniture, fixtures and equipment and intangible assets that 
are used in operations and exceed the Commission's capitalization threshold, as explained in Note 
Ih) Exhibit M. Accumulated depreciation and amortization is recorded for the life span of the asset. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided 
in the government-wide and fimd financial statements. The notes to the financial statements are a 
required part of the financial statements and can be found in Exhibit M of this report. 

Required Supplementary Information 

The requued supplementary information presented immediately following the notes to the financial 
statements in Exhibits N and O presents the Schedule of the Commission's Proportionate Share of 
Net Pension Liability and the Schedule of Commission's Contributions for the Municipal Employees 
Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS). 

Supplementary Information 

Schedules 1 through 4 of this report present the Combining Balance Sheet of Loan and Grant 
Programs and Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance for 
the various loan and grant programs. Schedule 5 presents a Schedule of Compensation, Benefits 
and Other Payments to the Commission's Agency Head or Chief Executive Officer. 



(Continued) 

Reports Required by Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance 

Also included in the report are special auditor reports on internal control over financial reporting, 
compliance and other matters, findings and schedules as required by Government Auditing 
Standards and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Uniform Guidance requires a Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. The Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards, Schedule 6, presents required information about the Commission's 
federally funded programs in a manner that can facilitate financial compliance analysis by agencies 
that have granted Federal money to the Commission. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

The table below reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2018 with comparative 
figures from June 30, 2017: 

TABLE A-1 
Condensed Statement of Net Position 

(in thousands) 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Totals 

For The Year Ended For The Year Ended For The Year Ended 
June 30. June 30, June 30 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

Current and other assets $ 32,301 $ 15,949 $ 79 $ 75 $ 32,380 $ 16,024 
Capital assets 3.862 3.930 1,290 1.081 5,152 5.011 

Total assets 36,163 19,879 1,369 1,156 $ 37,532 $ 21,035 
Deferred outflows of resources 662 741 682 831 1,344 1,572 

Total assets and deferred 
inflows of resources $ 36.82.5 L 

$ 

2.051 i_l 987 >15 38.876 $ 22.607 

Lx)ng -term liabilities $ 1,785 $ 1,809 

L 
$ 1,717 $ 1,846 $ 3,502 $ 3.655 

Other liabilities 522 454 215 70 737 524 
Total liabilities 2,307 2,263 1,932 1,916 4,239 4,179 

Deferred inflows of resources 107 25 110 28 217 53 
Total liabilities and deferred 

inflows of resources 2.414 2.288 2,042 1,944 4,456 4,232 
Net assets: 

Net investment in capital assets 3.755 3,787 1,291 1,081 5,046 4,868 
Restricted 30,524 14,311 - - 30,524 14,311 
Unrestricted (deficit) 132 234 (1.282) fl.038) (1,150) (804) 

Total net position 34,411 18,332 9 43 34,420 18.375 

Total liabilities and 
net position $ 36.825 $ 20.620 $ 2.051 1. 1.987 38.876 22.607 



(Continued) 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis (Continued) 

The increase in cuiTcnt and other assets is prunaiily due to the Commission's administration of the 
Restore Louisiana Small Business Loan Program. This loan program is responsible for the issuance 
of $17,342,000 new loans to small business impacted by the 2016 flood. In addition, business 
activities capitalized approximately $313,000 of software development costs as intangible assets. 
DefeiTcd outflows of resources and long-term liabilities decreased primaiily due to accounting for 
the Commission's proportionate share of pension liability in MERS Plan B. 

For more detailed information see Exhibit A, the Statement of Net Position. 

Approximately 14.66% of the Commission's net position as of June 30, 2018, reflect the 
Commission's net investment in capital assets (buildings, furniture, fixtures, equipment and 
intangible assets), 88.68% is restricted for the loan program, and the unrestricted net position is a 
deficit of 3.34% of total net position. 

The table below provides a summary of the changes in net position for the year ended June 30,2018, 
with comparative figures fiom June 30, 2017: 

TABLE A-2 
Condensed Statement of Changes in Net Position 

(in Thousands) 

Govermnental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Totals 

Eor The Year Ended Eor The Year Ended For Tlie Year Ended 
June 30, June 30, Jime 30. 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

evenues 
Program revenues: 

Charge for services $ 1,352 $ 1,137 $ 3,280 $ 2,929 $ 4,632 $ 4.066 
Operating grairts and contributions 19.884 1,948 - 30 19.884 1,978 
Capital grants and contributions 255 514 - - 255 514 

General revenues: 
Dues assessment 154 154 - - 154 154 
Grants and contributions not restricted 

to specific programs 99 188 - - 99 188 
Miscellaneous 36 31 10 24 46 55 
Transfers 118 (53) (118) 53 - -

Total revenues 21,898 3,919 3,172 3.036 25,070 6.955 

Expenses 
Economic Development and Assistance 

Change in net position 

Net Position 
Beginning net position 
Ending net position 

5,819 

16.079 

18.332 
$ 34.411 

6.175 

(2,256) 

20.588 
18.332 

3.206 

(34) 

43 

3.022 

14 

29 

9.025 

16,045 

18.375 

9.197 

(2,242) 

20^17 
43 $ 34.420 $ 18,375 



(Continued) 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis (Continued) 

The Commission's net position increased by approximately $16,045,000 during the current fiscal 
year. 

Governmental Activities net position increased approximately $16,079,000, primaiily due to 
operating grant revenue received related to the Restore Louisiana Small Business Loan Program. 

Economic development expenses decreased in 2018 primarily because the Commission decreased 
the provision for loan loss by $847,000 in 2018. Offsetting the decrease in loan losses were 
increases in personal services and other costs of approximately $491,000 related to the Restore 
Louisiana Small Business Loan Program. 

Business-Type Activities net position decreased by approximately $34,000, primarily due to higher 
economic development and assistance expenses. The current year's change in net position for 
Information Technology Fund was a decrease of approximately $18,000, while the continuing 
operation of the Regional Building Code Fund decreased the change in net position by 
approximately $ 16,000. 

Financial Analysis of the Commission's Funds 

The Commission uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds: 

The focus of the Commission's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such infoimation is useful in assessing the 
Commission's financing requirements. In particular, umeserved fund balance may seiwe as a useful 
measme of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. The 
combined fund balance of the Commission's governmental funds at June 30, 2018 was 
approximately $31,778,000 as compared to $15,495,000 at June 30, 2017, an increase of 
approximately $16,283,000. The increase in the governmental funds' fund balance is primarily due 
to the operating grant revenue recognized in the Loan Fund as previously described. 

Revenues for the Commission's governmental funds for the year ended June 30, 2018 was 
approximately $21,780,000. There are four funding categories: intergovernmental (93.03%), 
charges for services (4.72%), interest earned (1.50%), and miscellaneous (.75%). The Commission's 
governmental fund expenditures were approximately $5,615,000 for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
There are nine categories of expenditures: provision for doubtful loans (31.72%), personal seiwices 
(38.63%), supplies and materials (1.69%), other services and charges (22.03%), grant distributions 
(4.06%), repairs and maintenance (0.29%), debt seiwice (0.75%) and capital expenditures (.83%). 



(Continued) 

Financial Analysis of the Commission's Funds (Continued) 

Governmental Funds: (Continued) 

A decrease in capital expenditures of approximately $609,000 was primarily due nom ecurring prior 
year constinction expenses associated with the addition to the administration building. Provision for 
doubtful loans decreased by approximately $847,000. Grant disbursements decreased by 
approximately $78,000. Other services and charges increased by approximately $294,000 and the 
increase was lead by the recognition of expenses for loan administiation. The personal services 
category increased approximately $195,000 due to ramping up for the Restore Louisiana Small 
Business Loan Program. 

Fund Analysis 

General Fund: 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Commission. At the end of the cunent fiscal 
year, the total fund balance of the General Fund was approximately $1,166,000. Of this amount, 
approximately $43,000 was non-spendable and the remainder of fund balance, approximately 
$1,122,000, is unassigned. Dming the cunent fiscal year, the fund balance of the Commission's 
General Fund, decreased by approximately $16,000 (Exhibit E). 

Loan Fund: 

The Commission maintains ten loan programs. The loan programs are federally funded. The 
expenditures consist of provisions for doubtful loans (59.05%), other charges and services 
(15.25%), personal services (22.98%), and other expenditures (2.72%). 

Capital Projects Fund: 

During the cunent year, the Commission expended approximately $23,000 wrapping up the new 
addition to the administration building. 

Grant Fund: 

The Commission maintains fourteen individual grant programs. These programs are generally 
reimbursed by federal/state grants. Expenditures in excess of the grants are covered by bansfers 
from the General Fund. 

Proprietary Funds: 

The Commission's proprietary funds, the Regional Building Code Fund and the Information 
Technology Fund provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial 
statements, but in more detail. 

10 
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Fund Analysis (Continued) 

Umestiicted net position of the Regional Building Code Fund and at June 30, 2018 amounted to a 
deficit of approximately $421,000 (Exhibit J). This fund is used to account for revenues and 
expenses associated with the Commission's regional building inspection activities. This fund 
encompasses all assets associated with its operation. Net investment in capital assets, furniture, 
fixtures, equipment and intangibles, at the end of the cunent fiscal year totaled approximately 
$109,000 (E?^ibit J). During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Regional Building Code Fund 
recognized a net operating loss of approximately $16,000 primarily due to an increase in tiansfers 
out to the General Fund. 

Unrestiicted net position of the Information T echnology Fund at June 3 0, 2018 amounted to a deficit 
of approximately $861,000 (Exhibit J). This fund is used to account for revenues and expenses 
associated with the Commission's informational technology activities. This fund encompasses all 
assets associated with its operation. Net investment in capital assets, furniture fixtures, equipment 
and intangibles, at the end of the current fiscal year totaled approximately $1,182,000 (Exhibit J). 
During the yeai* ended June 30, 2018, the Information Teclmology Fund recognized a decrease 
change in net position of approximately $18,000 due to increase in its personal service expenses for 
other charges and services. 

Budgetary Highlights 

Budgets are presented to the Board of Commissioners and adopted as required by Louisiana Revised 
Statutes. As needed budget adjustments are made to account for any significant deviation from 
beginning year projections. The major difference between the original General Fund budget and 
the final amended budget was for a decrease in personal services due to projected in cuts in 
administration. Other significant differences between the original and final General Fund budget 
was an increase of approximately $58,000 in other services and charges. 

Budgets are also presented for the Commission's special revenue funds: the Loan Fund and Grant 
Fund. Differences in the original and final Loan Fund budget were increases in the provision for 
loan loses and decreases in operating tiansfers out. Grant Fund had significant declines from the 
original budget to the final budget in intergovernmental revenue and personal services. 

Capital Asset and Long-Term Obligations 

The Commission's net investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities 
as of June 30, 2018, amounts to approximately $5,153,000 (net of accumulated depreciation). This 
net investment in capital assets includes buildings, furniture, fixtures, equipment, and intangible 
assets as shown in Table A-3. This amount represents a net increase of approximately $142,000 
over last year. The increase was primarily for software development costs capitalized for 
approximately $313,000 in business activities of the Information Technology Fund. 

11 
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Capital Asset and Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 

Table A-3 
Capital Assets 

(Net of depreciation) 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Totals 

For The Year Ended For The Year Ended For The Year Ended 
June 30, June 30, June 30, 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

Buildings $ 3,783 $ 3,850 $ $ $ 3,783 $ 3,850 

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 79 80 168 116 247 196 
Intangibles - - 1,123 965 1,123 965 

Totals $ 3,862 $ 3,930 $ 1,291 $ 1,081 $ 5,153 $ 5,011 

Additional mformation on the Commission's capital assets can be found in Note 5, Exhibit M of this 
report. 

Long-term obligations of the Commission as of June 30, 2018 consisted of net pension liability, 
certificates of indebtedness and compensated absences. 

On May 14, 2014, the Commission issued $250,000 of Certificates of Indebtedness, Series 2014A 
for the purpose of making capital improvements. The certificates matme through May 1, 2021 with 
an interest rate of 4.50%. Interest payments are due quarterly and principal payments are made 
annually on May 1. The balance of outstanding certificates as of June 30, 2018 was approximately 
$107,000. 

The Commission awards permanent full-time employees paid vacation time that varies depending 
upon the years of service. Earned but unused vacation time vests with the employee and is paid 
upon termination. Accrued vacation time is accounted as a long-term obligation of the Commission. 
As of June 30, 2018 the Commission recognized approximately $163,000 ($126,000 current), 
$87,000 in governmental activities and $76,000 in business-type activities of accrued vacation pay. 

Also in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the Commission implemented Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, 
which required recognition of the Commission's proportionate share of the net pension liability of 
its pension plan, the Municipal Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS). As of June 
30, 2018 the Commission's proportionate share of the net pension liability amounted to 
approximately $3,232,000, $1,591,000 and $1,641,000 in governmental activities and business-type 
activities, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Commission experienced a 
decrease in its proportionate share of the net pension liability of approximately $139,000, with 
$141,000 of the decrease in business-type activities. 

12 



(Continued) 

Capital Asset and Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 

Additional infonnation on the Commission's long-term debt can be found in Note 7, Exhibit M of 
this report. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates 

The Board of Commissioners and management considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 
2019 budget. These factors include any unusual conditions, one time expenditures and increases in 
rates or fees that occurred during the 2018 fiscal year or that have already been announced for the 
2019 fiscal year. 

General Fund revenues for fiscal year 2019 are projected to be approximately $537,000, a decrease 
of approximately $404,000 under the 2018 fiscal year revenues. Budgeted expenditures are 
expected to increase approximately $68,000 in comparison to the 2018 fiscal year expenditures. 
Special revenue fund revenues are expected to decrease $9,570,000 in comparison to fiscal year 
2018. Budgeted expenditures of special revenue funds are expected to decrease approximately 
$2,571,000 compared to 2018 expenditures. The General Fund's fund balance is budgeted for an 
increase of approximately $45,000, while the special revenue fund balance is budgeted at 
approximately $4,974,000. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Commission's finances for all 
those with an interest in the Commission's finances. If you have any questions about this report or 
need additional financial information, contact South Central Planning and Development 
Commission, 5058 West Main Street, Houma, Louisiana 70360 or P.O. Box 1870, Gray, Louisiana 
70359. General information relating to the Commission can be found at the Commission's website, 
scpdc.org 



STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

June 30,2018 

Exhibit A 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Total 

ASSETS AND DEFERRED 
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables: 

Economic loans 
Miscellaneous 

Due from other governmental units 
Internal balances 
Prepaid other 
Deposits 
Capital assets 

Depreciable, net accumulated depreciation 
Intangible assets, net accumulated amortization 

Total assets 

Deferred outflow of resources, pensions 

Total assets and deferred outflow of resources 

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED 
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Unearned revenue 
Non-current liabilities -

Due within one year 
Due after one year 

Total liabilities 

Deferred inflows of resources, pensions 

Total liabilities and deferred inflow of resources 

NET POSITION 

Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted: 

Loan program 
Debt Service 

Unrestricted (deficit) 

Total net position 

See notes to financial statements. 

3,755,181 

30.523,915 
3 

131,581 _ 

$ 34,410,680 $ 

1,291,206 

(1,282,286) 

$ 5,133,575 $ 358,396 $ 5,491,971 

25,227,265 25,227,265 
156,369 - 156,369 

1,078,250 343,224 1,421,474 
659,247 (659,247) -
37,014 35,445 72,459 
9,217 9,217 

3,862,325 168,356 4,030,681 
- 1,122,850 1,122,850 

36,163,262 1,369,024 37,532,286 

661,705 682,467 1,344,172 

36,824,967 2,051,491 38,876,458 

443,148 72,059 515,207 
79,375 142,920 222,295 

104,890 56,995 161,885 
1,680,233 1.660,609 3,340,842 

2,307,646 1,932,583 4,240,229 

106,641 109,988 216,629 

2,414,287 2,042,571 4,456,858 

5,046,387 

30,523,915 
3 

(1,150,705) 

8,920 $ 34,419,600 
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Exhibit B 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Program Revenue 
Net (Expense) Revenue and 

Economic development 
and assistance: 
Governmental activities: 

Loan program 
Grant program 

Total governmental 
activities: 

Business-type activities: 
Regional building code 
Information technology 

Total business-type 
activities: 

Totals 

Expenses 

3,031,851 
1,572,961 
1,214,321 

5,819,133 

1,611.138 
1,595,292 

Charges for 
Services 

647,759 
434,471 
270,211 

1,352,441 

1,706,116 
1,574,228 

Operating Capital 
Grants and Grants and 

Contributions Contributions 

$ 18,911,685 
971,816 

19,883,501 

255,359 

255,359 

3,206,430 3,280,344 

$ 9,025,563 $ 4.632,785 $ 19,883,501 $ 255,359 

General revenues: 
Dues assessment 
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 
Unrestricted investment earnings 
Miscellaneous 

Transfers 

Total General revenues and transfers 

Change in net position 

Net position: 
Beginning of the year 

End of the year 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Total 

$ 16,527,593 
(166,674) 
(688,751) 

$ 16,527,593 
(166,674) 
(688,751) 

15,672,168 15,672,168 

- $ 94,978 
(21,064) 

94,978 
(21,064) 

. 73,914 73,914 

15,672,168 73.914 15,746,082 

153,681 
98,753 

49 
35,781 

118,555 

156 
10,023 

(118.555) 

153,681 
98,753 

205 
45,804 

406,819 (108.376) 298,443 

16,078,987 (34,462) 16,044,525 

18,331,693 43.382 18,375,075 

$ 34,410.680 $ 8,920 $ 34,419,600 

See notes to financial statements. 
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BALANCE SHEET -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

June 30, 2018 

Exhibit C 

Assets 
Cash 
Receivables: 

Economic loans 
Miscellaneous 

Due from other governmental units 
Due from other funds 
Prepaids 
Deposits 

Total assets 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued 

expenditures 
Due to other funds 
Unearned revenue 

Total liabilities 

Fund Balances 
Nonspendables 
Restricted: 

Loans 
Debt service 

Assigned 
Assigned for capital projects 

Unassigned 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

General 
Fund 

Loan 
Fund 

Capital 
Grant Projects 
Fund Fund 

$ 194.255 

14,849 
125,433 

2,219.847 
35,455 
7,899 

$ 4,939,317 

25,227,265 

561.211 
410,000 

90 
1,318 

141,520 
299,731 

1,469 

Debt Total 
Service Governmental 

Fund Funds 

91,875 
857,060 

3 $ 5,133,575 

25,227,265 
156.369 

1.078,250 
3,486,907 

37,014 
9,217 

$ 2,597,738 $ 31,139,201 $ 442,720 S 948.935 $ 3 $ 35.128.597 

85,593 $ 
1,267,072 

79.375 

692 $ 245,093 
596.358 196,158 

$ 111.770 
768,072 

1,432.040 

$ 443.148 
2.827,660 

79,375 

597,050 441,251 879,842 

43.352 25,227,265 

5,314,886 

1,469 

1.122,346 

1,165,698 30,542,151 1,469 

69,093 

69.093 

3,350,183 

25,272,086 

5,314,886 

69,093 
1,122,346 

31.778.414 

$ 2.597.738 $ 31,139.201 $ 442,720 $ 948,935 $ 3 $ 35.128,597 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Exhibit D 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

June 30, 2018 

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
Statement of Net Position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and, therefore, are not 
reported in the governmental funds. 

Governmental capital assets 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Deferred outflows of resources used in governmental 
activities are not financial resources and, therefore, 
are not reported in governmental fimds. 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the 
current period and therefore are not reported in 

the governmental fund. 
Certificates of indebtedness 

Non-current liabilities are not due and payable in the 
current period and therefore are not reported in 
the governmental funds. 

Net pension liability 
Compensated absences payable 

Deferred inflows of resources are not due and 
payable in the current period and, therefore, 
are not reported in governmental funds. 

Net Position of Governmental Activities 

$ 31,778,414 

$ 4,808,935 
(946,610) 3,862,325 

661,705 

(107,144) 

(1,591,027) 
(86,952) (1,677,979) 

(106,641) 

$ 34,410,680 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Exhibit E 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Interest earned 
Due from other governments 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Economic development and assistance: 
Personal services 
Supplies and materials 
Other services and charges 
Repairs and maintenance 
Provision for doubtful loans 
Grant distributions 

Debt Service: 
Principal retirement 
Interest payments 

Capital expenditures 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

General 
Fund 

Loan 
Fund 

Grant 
Fund 

Capital 
Projects 

Fund 

Debt 
Service 
Fund 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 656,903 
270,211 

49 
13,934 

$ 18,572.467 I 
308.021 
327.282 
33.783 

K 942.148 
450.597 

112.295 

$ 91,875 $ 20,263,393 
1,028.829 
327.331 
160.012 

941,097 19,241,553 1,505.040 91.875 21,779,565 

636,843 
62,249 
133,136 
15,639 

169,425 

692.998 
20.596 

459.973 

1,781.221 
58.827 

839.018 
11.970 

644.325 -

2,168,859 
94.815 

1,237.434 
15.639 

1,781,221 
228.252 

20,968 2.717 

-

22.782 

$ 35,714 
6,429 

35.714 
6.429 

46.467 

1,038,260 3,016.332 1,495,313 22,782 42,143 5,614,830 

(97,163) 16,225,221 9.727 69,093 (42,143) 16,164,735 

244,753 
(163,361) 

302.061 
(298.783) 

117.940 
(126,198) 

- 42,143 706.897 
(588.342) 

81,392 3.278 (8.258) . 42,143 118.555 

(15,771) 16,228.499 1.469 69.093 - 16,283.290 

1,181,469 14,313.652 3 15,495,124 

$ 1,165.698 : $ 30,542.151 3 ; 1,469 $ 69,093 $ 3 : S 31,778,414 

See notes to financial statements. 



Exhibit F 

RECONCILIATION GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS OF 
THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 16,283,290 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement 
of Activities are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. 
However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of those 
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense 

Capital outlay $ 46,467 
Depreciation expense (114,096) (67,629) 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial 
resources to govermnental funds, while the repayment 
of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current 
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither 
transaction however as an effect on net position. Also, 
governmental funds report the effect of premiums, 
discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, 
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized 
in the statement of activities. 

Principal payments 35,714 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities 
do not require the use of current financial resources and, 
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the 
governmental funds. 

Pension expense (163,262) 
Increase in compensated absences (9,126) (172,388) 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 16,078,987 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Exhibit G 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Budgeted Amounts 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Interest earned 
Miscellaneous 

$ 332,363 
319,560 

170 
4,900 

$ 316,681 
331,608 

50 
15,250 

$ 656,903 
270,211 

49 
13,934 

$ 340,222 
(61,397) 

(1) 
(1,316) 

Total revenues 656,993 663,589 941,097 277,508 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Economic development and assistance: 
Personal services 
Supplies and materials 
Other services and charges 
Repairs and maintenance 
Grant distributions 

Capital expenditures 

718,944 
63,700 

158,900 
3,500 

150,000 
32,500 

620,800 
36,300 

216,895 
5,370 

163,000 
21,100 

636,843 
62,249 

133,136 
15,639 

169,425 
20,968 

(16,043) 
(25,949) 
83,759 

(10,269) 
(6,425) 

132 

Total expenditures 1,127,544 1,063,465 1,038,260 25,205 

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (470,551) (399,876) (97,163) 302,713 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

531,413 
(87,481) 

592,120 
(132,147) 

244,753 
(163,361) 

(347,367) 
(31,214) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 443,932 459,973 81,392 (378,581) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (26,619) 60,097 (15,771) (75,868) 

Fund Balance 
Beginning of year 1,181,473 1,181,469 1,181,469 

End of year $ 1,154,854 $ 1,241,566 $ 1,165,698 $ (75,868) 

See notes to financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

LOAN FUND 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Exhibit H 

Budgeted Amounts 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Interest earned 
Miscellaneous 

$ 1,157,041 

330,705 
11,900 

$ 17,077,843 : 

325,218 
38,600 

$ 18,572,467 
308,021 
327,282 
33,783 

$ 1,494,624 
308,021 

2,064 
(4,817) 

Total revenues 1,499,646 17,441,661 19,241,553 1.799,892 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Economic development and assistance: 
Personal services 
Supplies and materials 
Other services and charges 
Grant Distributions 
Provision for doubtful loans 

Capital expenditures 

826,900 
75,450 

261,700 

10,000 

709,125 
16,770 

165,982 

2,656,558 
3,000 

692,998 
20,596 

459,973 
58,827 

1,781,221 
2,717 

16,127 
(3,826) 

(293,991) 
(58,827) 
875,337 

283 

Total expenditures 1,174,050 3,551,435 3,016,332 535,103 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 325,596 13,890,226 16,225,221 2,334,995 

Other Financing Sources (uses) 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

529,639 
(960,443) 

364,871 
(706,351) 

302,061 
(298,783) 

(62,810) 
407,568 

Total other financing sources (uses) (430,804) (341,480) 3,278 344,758 

Net Change in Fund Balance (105,208) 13,548,746 16,228,499 2,679,753 

Fund Balance 
Beginning of year 17,568,489 14,313,652 14,313,652 

End of year •$ 17,463,281 $ 27,862,398 1 B 30,542,151 $ 2,679,753 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Exhibit I 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

GRANT FUND 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Budgeted Amounts 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for Services 
Interest earned 
Miscellaneous 

$ 1,474,885 
60,000 

3 
112,500 

$ 1,317,073 
16,126 

112,295 

$ 942,148 
450,597 

112,295 

$ (374,925) 
434,471 

Total revenues 1,647,388 1,445,494 1,505,040 59,546 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Economic development and assistance: 
Personal services 
Supplies and materials 
Other services and charges 
Repairs and maintenance 

Capital expenditures 

1,153,928 
9,900 

482,482 
2,000 

14,500 

1,012,899 
9,940 

427,732 

839,018 
11,970 

644,325 

173,881 
(2,030) 

(216,593) 

Total expenditures 1,662,810 1,450,571 1,495,313 (44,742) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (15,422) (5,077) 9,727 14.804 

Other Financing Uses 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

70,472 
(55,050) 

111,887 
(106,810) 

117,940 
(126,198) 

6,053 
(19,388) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 15,422 5,077 (8,258) (13,335) 

Net Change in Fund Balance $ $ $ 1,469 $ 1,469 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Exhibit J 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

June 30, 2018 

Business-Type Activities Enterprise Funds 
Regional 

Building Code 
Fund 

Information 
Technology 

Fund Total 
ASSETS 

Current 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Due from other governmental units 
Due from other funds 
Prepaid insurance 
Prepaid maintenance 

$ 240,395 
111,637 

14,599 
1,166 

$ 118,001 
231,587 

3,847 
1,630 

18,050 

$ 358,396 
343,224 

3,847 
16,229 
19,216 

Total current assets 367,797 373,115 740,912 

Capital Assets 
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Intangible assets 

Less accumulated amortization 

511,846 
(421,470) 
342,197 

(323,759) 

267,424 
(189,444) 

1,559,858 
(455,446) 

779,270 
(610,914) 

1,902,055 
(779,205) 

Net capital assets 108,814 1,182,392 1,291,206 

Total assets 476,611 1,555,507 2,032,118 

Deferred Outflow of Resources, Pensions 426,837 255,630 682,467 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 903,448 1,811,137 2,714,585 

LIABILITIES 

Current 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Due to other funds 
Compensated absences payable 
Unearned revenue 

23,166 
9,074 

34,359 
50,000 

48,893 
654,020 

22,636 
92,920 

72,059 
663,094 

56,995 
142,920 

Total payable from current assets 116,599 818,469 935,068 

Noncurrent 
Compensated absences payable 
Net pension liability 

3,992 
1,026,302 

15,668 
614,647 

19,660 
1,640,949 

Total noncurrent liabilities 1,030,294 630,315 1,660,609 

Total liabilities 1,146,893 1,448,784 2,595,677 

Deferred Inflows of Resources, Pensions 68,789 41,199 109,988 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 1,215,682 . 1,489,983 2,705,665 

NET POSITION (DEFICIT) 

Net investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted (deficit) 

108,814 
(421,048) 

1,182,392 
(861.238) 

1,291,206 
(1,282,286) 

Total net position (deficit) $ (312,234) $ 321,154 $ 8,920 

iee notes to tinanciai statements. 
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Exhibit K 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Regional 
Building Code 

Fund 

Information 
Technology 

Fund Total 
Operating Revenues 

Charges for services $ 1,706,116 $ 1,574,228 $ 3,280,344 

Operating Expenses 
Personal services 
Supplies and materials 
Other services and charges 
Repairs and maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization expense 

1,345,788 
28,866 

174,275 
6,641 

55,568 

1,070,910 
17,965 

333,053 

173,364 

2,416,698 
46,831 

507,328 
6,641 

228,932 

Total operating expenses 1,611,138 1,595,292 3,206,430 

Operating income (loss) 94,978 (21,064) 73,914 

Nonoperating Revenues 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous 

131 
7,118 

25 
2,905 

156 
10,023 

Total nonoperating revenues 7,249 2,930 10,179 

Other Financing Uses 
Operating transfers out (118,555) (118,555) 

Change in Net Position (16,328) (18,134) (34,462) 

Net Position (Deficit) 
Beginning of year (295,906) 339,288 43,382 

End of year $ (312,234) $ 321,154 $ 8,920 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Exhibit L 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

South Central Planning «& Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Cash Flows provided by Operating Activities 
Cash received from customers and users 
Cash payments to suppliers 
Cash payments to employees for services and benefits 

Business-Type Activities Enterprise Funds 
Building Information 

Code Technology 
Fund Fund Total 

$ 1,875,335 $ 1,659,056 $ 3,534,391 
(186,861) (284,283) (471,144) 

(1,375,009) (938,410) (2,313,419) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income 
to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Net cash provided by operating activities 313,465 436,363 749,828 

Cash Flows provided by Non-Capital Financing Activities 
Transfers to other funds (118,555) - (118,555) 

Cash Flow used in Capital Financing Activities 
Acquisition and development of capital assets (81,366) (357,558) (438,924) 

Cash Flows provided by Investing Activities 
Investment income 131 25 156 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 113,675 78,830 192,505 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Beginning of year 126,720 39,171 165.891 

End of year $ 240,395 $ 118,001 $ 358,396 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash 
provided by Operating Activities: 
Operating income (loss) $ 94,978 $ (21,064) $ 73,914 

Depreciation and amortization 55,568 173,364 228,932 
Pension expense (credits) (23,085) 112,407 89,322 
Miscellaneous income 7,118 2,905 10,023 
(Increase) decrease in assets: 

Due from other governmental units 112,100 14,491 126,591 
Due from other funds 381 (3,847) (3,466) 
Prepaid expenses 10,040 (9,890) 150 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (1,568) 29,120 27,552 
Due to other funds 9,074 57,352 66,426 
Compensated absences (1,141) 14,094 12,953 
Unearned revenue 50,000 67,431 117,43 1 

Total adjustments 218,487 457,427 675,914 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 313,465 $ 436,363 $ 749,828 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Exhibit M 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

June 30, 2018 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies of the South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 
(the Commission) conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAP) as applied to special districts as prescribed by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the accepted standard setting body 
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The 
accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting policies are 
discussed in subsequent subsections of this note. 

a) Reporting Entity 

The Commission was created under enabling legislation of the State of Louisiana and 
incorporated under the provisions of Louisiana Revised Statutes 12:201 et., seq., as 
amended in 1968; provided, however, that its activities shall be consistent with the 
powers, duties, rights and liabilities as may be deemed necessary or proper to 
accomplish the purposes of a regional planning or an economic development district 
and are for charitable, educational and scientific research purposes. 

The Commission although governed by a Board of Commissioners who are directly 
appointed by the governing bodies of the municipalities and parishes, of which it 
serves, is considered a separate governmental entity because it is substantially 
autonomous. 

GASB No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, GASB No. 39, Determining Whether 
Certain Organizations Are Component Units- an amendment of GASB Statement No. 
14, and GASB No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus and amendment of 
GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34 established the criterion for deteimining which 
component units should be considered part of the Commission for financial reporting 
purposes. The basic criteria are as follows: 

1. Legal status of the potential component unit including the right to incur its own 
debt, levy its own taxes and charges, expropriate propeity in its own name, sue 
and be sued, and the right to buy, sell and lease property in its own name. 
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(Continued) 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

a) Reporting Entity (Continued) 

2. Whether the governing authority appoints a majority of the board members of the 
potential component unit. 

3. Fiscal interdependency between the Commission and the potential component 
unit. 

4. Imposition of will by the Commission on the potential component unit. 

5. Financial benefit/burden relationship between the Commission and the potential 
component unit. 

The Commission has reviewed all of its activity and determined that there are no 
potential component units and the basic financial statements include all the fund types 
of the entity. 

b) Basis of Presentation 

The Commission's basic financial statements consist of the government-wide 
statements on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the Commission and the 
governmental and proprietary fund financial statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Position and 
the Statement of Activities for all activities of the Commission. As a general rule, the 
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. The government-
wide presentation focuses primarily on the sustainability of the Commission as an 
entity and the change in aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of 
the fiscal period. 

Governmental Activities represent programs, which normally are financed through 
intergovernmental revenues and other nonexchange revenues. 

Business-Type Activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external 
parties for goods and seiwices. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of 
a given function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. 
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Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

b) Basis of Presentation (Continued) 

Indirect costs are not allocated by function for financial reporting in this statement; 
however, certain indirect costs have been directly allocated as administrative fees to 
grants and special programs. Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or 
applicants who prrrchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges 
provided by a given function or segment and (2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function 
or segment. Dues and other items not properly included among program revenues are 
reported instead as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The focus of the fund financial statement is on major funds. The daily accounts and 
operations of the Commission are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, 
each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund 
are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its 
assets, defened outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 
equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources 
are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for 
which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. 
The various funds of the Commission are grouped, into generic fund types and broad 
fund categories as follows: 

Governmental activities presented as governmental funds in the fund financial 
statements: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Commission. 
It is used to account for and reported all financial resources except those that aie 
required to be accounted for and reported in another fund. The General Fund is always 
a major fund. 

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for and report 
the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than major capital projects) that are 
restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes. Special revenue funds 
reported as major funds in the fund financial statements are as follows: 

Loan Fund - used to account for and report receipts and uses of grant funds 
received from various federal agencies which are restricted to uses specified as 
economic development loans and giants as specified in giant documents. 
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Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

b) Basis of Presentation (Continued) 

Grant Fund - used to account for and report the receipts and disbursements of 
Federal and State giant programs as seivices are perfoiined. 

Capital Projects Fund - used to account for and report the fmancial resources that 
are restiicted, committed or assigned to expenditures for capital outlays, including the 
acquisition or constiiiction of major capital facilities and other capital assets (other 
than those financed by the Proprietary Funds). The Capital Projects Fund is reported 
as a major fund. 

Debt Service Fund - used to account for and report financial resources that are 
restricted, committed or assigned expenditures for debt principal, interest and related 
costs. The Debt Service Fund is reported as a major fund. 

Business activities presented as proprietary funds in the fund fmancial statements; 

Enterprise Funds - are used to account for operations: (a) that are financed and 
operated similarly to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing 
body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or 
sei-vices to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily 
through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided periodic 
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate 
for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other 
purposes. Enteiprise funds are presented in the business-type activities column in 
government-wide financial statements and the major fimds section of the basic 
financial statements, the enteiprise funds reported as a major fund in the fund financial 
statements are as follows: 

Regional Building Code Fund - accounts for and reports the providing of 
constmction plan approval and inspection seivices to the residents of the 
participating municipalities and parishes in which the Commission serves. All 
activities necessary to provide such seiwices are accounted for in this fund, 
including, but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing, 
billing and collection. 
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Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

b) Basis of Presentation (Continued) 

Information Technology Fund - accounts for and reports the design, 
development, maintenance and marketing of computer software used by local 
governmental organizations. All activities necessary to provide such services are 
accounted for in this fund including but not limited to design, software 
configuration, software interfaces, coding, testing, training and software 
maintenance. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating 
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and 
producing and delivering goods in coimection with a proprietary fund's principal 
ongoing operations. Operating expenses for the enterprise fund include the cost of 
services, administrative expenses, depreciation of capital assets, and amortization of 
intangible assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported 
as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

c) Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "which" transactions are recorded 
within the various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" 
tr ansactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regar dless of the timing 
of related cash flows. 

Fund Financial Statements 

All governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources 
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only cunent assets and current 
liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these 
funds present increases (revenues and other fmancing sources) and decreases 
(expenditures and other uses) in net current assets. Governmental funds are 
maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
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Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

c) Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (Continued) 

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

Governmental fund revenues resulting from exchange transactions are recognized in 
the fiscal year in which the exchange takes place and meets the government's 
availability criteria (susceptible to accrual). Available means that the resources will 
be collected within the cuiTent fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough 
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For this purpose, the 
Commission considers revenues to be available if they ai e collected within 60 days of 
the end of the current fiscal year. Member assessments are recognized as revenues in 
the period for which they are assessed. Grant and contiact revenues are recognized 
when earned since they are measurable and available. Interest earned and other 
miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenues when received in cash by the 
Commission because they are generally not measurable until actually received. 

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting 
when the related fund liability is incurred. An exception to this general rule is vacation 
and sick leave which are recognized when paid. Allocations of cost such as 
depreciation are not recognized in the governmental funds. 

All proprietaiy funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement 
focus. Proprietaiy funds are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting wherein 
revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and become 
measurable, and expenses are recognized in the period incuned, if measurable. 
Revenues resulting from transactions, in which each party gives and receives 
essentially equal value is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. 

d) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
certain estimates and assumptions. Those estimates affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosures of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements. They may also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses of 
proprietary funds and the govemment-wide financial statements during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

e) Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The Commission under the teims of its charter, adopts an annual budget. This budget 
is for the General Fund and special revenue funds. Special revenue funds, which at 
June 30, 2018 consisted of various government and government agency projects, are 
budgeted on a project by project basis as funding becomes available. The General 
Fund and special revenue funds budgets were amended during the year to reflect 
changes in budgeted revenues, expenditures and operating transfers as dictated by the 
circumstances. 

Budgets for carryover grants and projects, which are to be performed over more than 
one accounting period, are reflected only to the extent they affect the cunent period 
being reported on. Budgeted amounts which are not expended, or obligated tlu:ough 
contiacts, lapse at year end. 

Major funds are included in the budget presentations in the basic financial statements. 
The budgets are adopted on a basis materially consistent with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). 

The Capital Projects Fund present project budgets as opposed to annual budgets and 
are not reported in the accompanying financial statements. The Debt Seiwice Fund 
does not employ foimal budgetary accounting because control is achieved through the 
indentui e provisions of the bonds or certificates. 

f) Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in regular and money market accounts. 

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents include 
certificates of deposit with maturities of three months or less when purchased. 

g) Accounts and Loans Receivable 

The financial statements of the Commission contain no allowance for uncollectible 
accounts receivable. Uncollectible amounts due for member assessments, contract 
revenues and other receivables are recognized as bad debts at the time information 
becomes available which would indicate the uncollectibility of the particular 
receivable. Miscellaneous accounts receivable and amounts due ftom other 
governments in excess of 60 days comprise the accounts receivable allowance for 
uncollectibles. These amounts are not considered to be material in relation to the 
financial position or operations of the funds of the Commission. 
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Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

g) Accounts and Loans Receivable (Continued) 

Economic loans are shown net of an allowance for loan losses. Additions to the 
allowance for loan losses are recognized as expenditures in the governmental fund 
financial statements at the time information becomes available which would indicate 
the loan is less than fully collectible. As of June 30, 2018, the loan loss reserve 
amounted to $2,697,731, which is an decrease of $221,180 for the year ended June 
30, 2018. 

h) Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include buildings, furniture, fixtmes equipment and intangible 
assets, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column 
in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the 
Commission as assets purchased, acquired or developed with an original cost of 
$1,000 or more. Such assets are recorded at historical costs or estimated historical 
cost if actual is unavailable. 

Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. 
Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful 
life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incmred for repairs and maintenance are 
expensed as incuned. 

As described above, capital assets also include the historical cost of intangible assets. 
At June 30, 2018 the Commission's intangible assets consist of computer software 
costs purchased and developed mtemally. For purposes of identifying capitalizable 
computer software costs, the Commission has classified activities into (1) preliminary 
stage, (2) application development stage, and (3) post-implementation/operation 
stage. Costs incurred during the application development stage are capitalized, while 
costs incuned dming preliminary and post-implantation/operational the stages are 
expensed as incurred. 

Depreciation and amortization are provided over the assets' estimated useful lives 
using the straight-line method. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is 
as follows: 

Buildings 50 years 
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 4 - 25 years 
Intangible assets 10 years 
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Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

i) Non-Current Liabilities 

The accounting treatment of non-current liabilities depends on whether they aie 
reported in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether 
they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements. 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 

All non-cunent liabilities to be repaid from governmental resources are reported as 
liabilities in the government-wide statements. The non-current liabilities consist of 
certificates of indebtedness, accumulated annual leave and net pension liability. 

Fund Financial Statements: 

Non-current liabilities for governmental funds are not reported as liabilities in the 
governmental fund financial statements. In the proprietary fund financial statements 
non-current liabilities are reported as liabilities. 

The Commission's policies regarding vacation and sick leave permit employees to 
accumulate earned but unused vacation. The liability for these compensated absences 
is recorded as liabilities in the government-wide statements and the proprietary fund 
type fimd statements. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report 
only the compensated absence liability payable from expendable available fmancial 
resources. 

j) Compensated Absences 

All full-time, permanent employees of the Commission receive two weeks of vacation 
which accrues at a rate of 3.08 hours per pay period begirming with the first day of 
full-time, permanent employment. After five years of service employees will receive 
three weeks of vacation at a rate of 4.62 hours per pay period, and will receive an 
additional day of vacation per year of service after ten years of continuous 
employment. Vacation carmot be used for the first three months of full-time, 
permanent employment. Employees may carry over a maximum of 100 hom-s, 150 
hours if employed 5 years or longer, of vacation from one fiscal year to another. Any 
time in excess of the carryover limits must be approved by the Chief Executive Officer-
before the end of the fiscal year or the excess time will be lost without compensation. 
Vacation is paid when an employee terminates service with the Commission. 
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Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

j) Compensated Absences (Continued) 

All full-time, permanent employees of the Commission earn sick leave at the rate of 
one day per month or 3.69 hours per pay period. No limits on this accmal privilege 
have been established. Sick leave can be accumulated but does not vest and, therefore, 
a provision has not been made for sick leave. 

k) Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, defened outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, 
infonnation about the fiduciary net position of the Municipal Employees Retirement 
System of Louisiana (MERS) and additions to/deductions from MERS fiduciary net 
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by MERS. For 
this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments 
of MERS are reported at fair value. 

I) Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the Statement of Financial Position will sometimes report a 
separate section for defen ed outflows of resources. This separate financial statement 
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that 
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expenses/expenditures) until then. 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Financial Position will sometimes report a 
separate section for defened inflows of resources. This separate financial statement 
element, defened inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that 
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources 
(revenue) until then. 

m) Interfund Transactions 

In the financial statements, interfund activity is reported as either loans or transfers. 
Loans between funds are reported as interfund receivables (due from) and payables 
(due to) as appropriate. Transfers represent a permanent reallocation of resources 
between funds. In other words, they are not expected to be paid. For reporting 
puiposes, all interfund transactions between individual governmental funds have been 
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m) Interfund Transactions (Continued) 

eliminated in the government-wide financial statements. Any residual balances 
outstanding between the governmental activities and the business-type activities are 
reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances". 

n) Indirect Cost Plan 

The Commission maintains an indirect cost plan for the allocation of costs that ar e 
incurred for a common or joint purpose benefiting more than one cost objective and 
not readily assignable to the cost objectives specifically benefited through June 30, 
2018. These indirect costs are allocated based on direct salaries incuned by each fund 
benefiting from the indirect costs. 

o) Fund Equity 

Government-wide Statements: 

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components: 

Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restiicted capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of 
any bonds, mortgages, notes or other boixowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets, if any. 

Restricted net position - Consists of assets less liabilities (net position) with 
constraints placed on the use either by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, 
contributions or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Umestricted net position - All other net position that do not meet the definition of 
"restricted" or "net investment in capital assets." 

When both restricted and umestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
Commission's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as 
they are needed. 
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o) Fund Equity (Continued) 

Fund Financial Statements: 

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further 
classified as follows: 

a. Non-spendable - amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in non-
spendable foim or because they are legally or contiactually required to be 
maintained intact. 

b. Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific puiposes because of 
constitutional provisions, charter requirements or enaliling legislation or 
because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments. 

c. Committed - amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined 
by a formal action of the Commission's Board of Dkectors. Commitments may 
be established, modified, or rescinded only through resolutions approved by 
the Commission's Board of Directors. 

d. Assigned - amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as either 
restricted or committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. 
Assigned amounts may be established, modified or rescinded by majority vote 
of the Board of Directors or by the Chief Executive Officer. 

e. Unassigned - all other spendable amounts. 

For the classification of governmental fund balances, the Commission considers an 
expenditure to be made from the most restrictive first when more than one 
classification is available. The Commission's fund balance was classified as non-
spendable, resbicted, assigned and unassigned as of June 30, 2018. 

p) New GASB Statements 

During the year ending June 30, 2018, the Commission implemented the following 
GASB Statements: 
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p) New GASB Statements (Continued) 

Statement No. 75, "Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions" replaces the requirements of GASB 
Statement No. 45. This Statement requires governments to report a liability on the 
face of the financial statements for the OPEB that they provide: governments that are 
responsible only for OPEB liabilities related to then own employees and that provide 
OPEB through a defined benefit OPEB plan administered tlnough a trust that meets 
specified criteria will report a net OPEB liability, governments that participate in a 
cost-sharing OPEB plan that is administered through a tiiist that meets the specified 
criteria will report a liability equal to their proportionate share of the collective OPEB 
liability for all entities participating in the cost-sharing plan and governments that do 
not provide OPEB through a trust that meets specified criteria will report the total 
OPEB liability related to their employees. This Statement did not affect the 
Commission's financial statements. 

Statement No. 81, "Irrevocable Split Interest Agreements" provides recognition and 
measurement guidance for situation in which a government is a beneficiary of an 
irrevocable split interest agreement. This Statement requires that a government that 
receives resources puisuant to an irrevocable split interest agreement recognize assets, 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the inception of the agreement. 
Furthermore, this Statement requues that a government recognize assets representing 
its beneficial interests in agreements administered by third parties. Governments are 
required by this Statement to recognize revenue when the resources become 
applicable to the reporting period. This Statement enhances comparability and 
decision usefulness of financial statements among governments. This Statement did 
not affect the Commission's financial statements. 

Statement No. 85, "Omnibus 2017". On March 20, 2017, GASB issued "Omnibus 
2017" covering four main topics: blending component units; goodwill, fair value 
measurement and application; and postemployment benefits. This Statement did not 
affect the Commission's financial statements. 

Statement No. 86, "Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues" improves consistency in 
accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by providing 
guidance for tr ansactions in which cash and other monetaiy assets acquired with only 
existing resources - resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt - are placed in 
an inevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also 
improves accounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is 
extinguished and notes to financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance. 
This Statement did not affect the Commission's financial statements. 
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p) New GASB Statements (Continued) 

The GASB has issued the following Statements which will become effective in future 
years as shown below; 

Statement No. 83, "Certain Asset Retirement Obligations" addresses accounting and 
financial reporting for certain asset retuement obligations (AROs). An ARC is a 
legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. 
A government that has legal obligations to perform future asset retirement activities 
related to its tangible capital assets should recognize a liability based on the guidance 
in this Statement. This Statement establishes criteria for deteimining the timing and 
pattern of recognition of a liability and a con esponding deferred outflow of resources 
for AROs. The requuements of this Statement aie effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2018. Management has not yet determined the effect of this 
Statement on the financial statements. 

Statement No. 84, "Fiduciary Activities" guidance regarding the 
identification of fiduciaiy activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes 
and how those activities should be reported. This Statement establishes criteria for 
identifying fiduciaiy activities of all state and local governments. The focus of the 
criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the 
fiduciaiy activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. 
Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary component units and 
postemployment benefit aiTangements that are fiduciary activities. An activity 
meeting the criteria should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic financial 
statements. This Statement also provides for recognition of a liability to the 
beneficiaiies in a fiduciary fund when an event has occurred that compels the 
government to disburse fiduciary resources. The requirements of this Statement aie 
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Management has 
not yet deteimined the effect of this Statement on the financial statements. 

Statement No. 87, "Leases" increases the usefulness of governments' financial 
statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that 
previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources 
or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes 
a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are 
financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is 
required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a 
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p) New GASB Statements (Continued) 

lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a defeiTed inflow of resources, 
thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments' 
leasing activities. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting 
periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Earlier application is encouraged. 
Management has not yet determined the effect of this Statement on the financial 
statements. 

Statement No. 88, "Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings 
and Direct Placements" improves the infoiination that is disclosed in notes to 
government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and 
direct placements. The Statement clarifies which liabilities governments should 
include when disclosing information related to debt. This Statement requires that 
additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to financial 
statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; 
and temis specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with 
finance-related consequences, significant termination events with fmance-related 
consequences, and significant subjective acceleration clauses. For notes to financial 
statements related to debt, this Statement also requhes that existing and additional 
infoimation be provided for direct borrowings and direct placements of debt 
separately from other debt. The requirements of this Statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after June 30, 2018. Management has not yet deteimined 
the effect of this Statement on the financial statements. 

Statement No. 89, "Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a 
Construction Period" establishes accounting requuements for interest cost incurred 
before the end of a construction period. Such interest cost includes all interest that 
previously was accounted for in accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 5-
22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AlCPA Pronouncements, 
which are superseded by this Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost 
incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the 
period in which the cost is incuned for financial statements prepared using the 
economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incuned before the 
end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset 
reported in a business-type activity or enterprise fund. The requirements of this 
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. 
Management has not yet deteimined the effect of this Statement on the financial 
statements. 
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Statement No. 90, "Majority Equity Interest" the primary objectives of this Statement 
are to improve the consistency and comparability of reporting government's majority 
equity interest in legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of 
financial statement information for certain component units. It specifies that a 
majority equity interest in a legally separate organization should be reported as an 
investment if a government's holding of the equity interest meets the definition of an 
investment. A majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment 
should be measured using the equity method. This Statement establishes that 
ownership of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization results in the 
government being financially accountable for the legally separate organization and, 
therefore, the government should report that organization as component unit. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting period beginning after 
December 15, 2018. Management has not yet determined the effect of this Statement 
on the financial statements. 

Note 2 - DEPOSITS 

Louisiana state law allows all political subdivisions to invest excess funds in obligations 
of the United States or other federally insured investments, certificates of deposit of any 
bank domiciled or having a branch office in the State of Louisiana, guaranteed investment 
contracts and investment grade (A-l/P-1) commercial paper of domestic corporations. 

Bank Deposits: 

State law requires deposits (cash and certificates of deposit) of all political subdivisions 
to be fully collateralized at all times. Acceptable collateralization includes FDIC 
insurance and securities purchased and pledged to the political subdivision. Obligations 
of the United States, the State of Louisiana and certain political subdivisions are allowed 
as security for deposits. Obligations furnished as security must be held by the political 
subdivision or with an unaffiliated bank or with a trust company for the account of the 
political subdivision. 

The year end balances of deposits are as follows: 

Bank Reported 
Balances Amount 

Cash $ 5,935,983 $ 5,491,871 

41 



Exhibit M 
(Continued) 

Note 2 - DEPOSITS (Continued) 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Commission's 
deposits may not be returned to it. The Commission has a written policy for custodial 
credit risk which follows state law. As of June 30, 2018, $5,685,983 of the Commission's 
bank balance of $5,935,983 was exposed to custodial credit risk. These deposits were 
uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's 
trust department or agent and are deemed to be in the Commission's name by state law. 

At June 30, 2018, cash was adequately collateralized in accordance with state law by 
securities held by unaffiliated banks for the account of the Commission. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which promulgates the standards 
for accounting and financial reporting for state and local governments, considers these 
securities subject to custodial credit risk. Even though the deposits are considered subject 
to custodial credit risk under the provisions of GASB, Louisiana Revised Statute 39; 1229 
imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged 
securities within 10 days of being notified by the depositor that the fiscal agent has failed 
to pay deposited funds upon demand. 

A reconciliation of deposits as shown on the Statement of Net Position is as follows: 

Cash on hand $ 1 GO 
Carrying amount of deposits 5,491,871 

Total cash $ 5,491,971 

Note 3 - DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS 

As of June 30, 2018 due from other governmental units consisted of the following: 

Go\ernmental 
Business-

Type 
AKcncv Activities Activities Totals 

U.S. Environmental Prot. Agency, Region 6 : $ 140.359 J ; - : S 140.359 
U.S. Economic Development Administration 91,874 - 91.874 
Delta Regional Authorit>- Admin/Other Projects 6.737 - 6.737 
Louisiana Association of Plaiming and Development Districts 5.600 - 5.600 
Louisiana Municipal Advisory' mrd Technical Services Bmeau - 250 250 
Louisiana Department of Economic Development 556.458 - 556.458 
LA Dept. of Transportation and Development 100.567 - 100.567 
Louisiana Department of Wildlife & Fisheries 62,380 - 62,380 
Louisiana Office ofCultiual Development - 4.667 4,667 
Gov. Office of Homeland Security Emergency Preparedness 28,924 - 28,924 
Acadiana Plaiming Commission 2,811 - 2,811 
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Note 3 - DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS (Continued) 

Business-
Governmental Type 

Agency Activities Activities Totals 

Alexandria, LA 4,780 4.780 
Ascension Parish, LA . 2,250 2.250 
Assumption Parish Police Jury, LA 495 - 495 
Choudrant. LA - 56 56 
Covington, LA - 1,150 1.150 
Denham Springs, LA - 1,992 1.992 
East Baton Rouge Parish, LA - ###### 106.494 
Golden Meadow. LA 6.035 - 6.035 
Gonzales. LA - 800 800 
Gramerey, LA - 180 180 
Gretna, LA - 875 875 
Houma Terrebonne Airport Coimnission, LA 17,875 - 17,875 
Jefferson Parish, LA - 4.783 4,783 
Lafourche Parish, LA 5,628 6.547 12,175 
Lake Charles, LA - 1.786 1,786 
Lockport, LA - 71 71 
Madisonville, LA - 437 437 
Mandeville, LA - 1.033 1,033 
Morgan City, LA - 279 279 
New Roads, LA - 260 260 
Plaquemines, LA - 2,500 2,500 
Port of New Orleans, LA - 100 100 
Ruston. LA - 3,667 3,667 
St Bernard Parish. LA - 1,052 1,052 
St Charles Parish, LA 2,684 15,031 17,715 
St Gabriel, LA - 303 303 
St James Parish, LA 4,844 (853) 3,991 
St John the Baptist Parish, LA 8,184 42,318 50,502 
St Mary Parish, LA - 875 875 
St. Taimnany Parish, LA . 22,061 22.061 
Tangipahoa Parish - 443 443 
Terrebomie Parish Consolidated Government, LA 2,232 3,787 6.019 
Terrebomie Levee and Conservation District, LA 34.563 - 34.563 
West Baton Rouge Parish. LA - 800 800 
West Feliciana Parish, LA - 482 482 
West Lake, LA - 5,412 5,412 
Riverside, AL - 113 113 
Escambia Count}', EL - 19.717 19,717 
Hernando, MS - 895 895 
Pigeon Forge, TN - 2,925 2,925 
Sevierville. TN - 1,293 1,293 
Charles Town. WV - 981 981 
Jefferson Cit\', WV - 737 737 
Ranson, WV - 1,818 1,818 
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Note 3 - DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS (Continued) 

A^eticv 

Business-
Governmental T>'pe 

Activities Activities Totals 

Bee Cave. TX 2,920 2,920 
Belton, TX 958 958 
Buda, TX 1,000 1,000 
Burnett. TX 467 467 
Cedar Park, TX 3,397 3,397 
Fort Bend, TX 7,500 7,500 
Georgetown, TX 4,480 4,480 
Marker Heiglits. TX 5,500 5,500 
Hays, TX 1,982 1,982 
Houston Airport, TX 1,460 1,460 
Hutto. TX 730 730 
Jonestown, TX 767 767 
LaGo Vista, TX 2,559 2,559 
Leander. TX 4,250 4,250 
Manor. TX 4,062 4,062 
Marble Falls, TX 1,024 1,024 
Mont Belvieu, TX 272 272 
Nacogdoches, TX 1,776 1,776 
Olmos Park, TX 260 260 
Pflugerville, TX 4,772 4,772 
San Marcos, TX 4,799 4,799 
Taylor, TX 2,274 2,274 
Temple. TX 8,784 8,784 
Travis Coimty, TX 11,634 11,634 
Windcrest. TX 450 450 

$ 1,078,250 $ 343,224 $ 1,421,474 

As of June 30, 2018, governmental activities included $141,520 of unbilled grant 
receivables reported as miscellaneous receivables in the Grant Fund. There were no 
unbilled receivables from business activities as of June 30, 2018. 
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Note 4 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

Interfund receivables and payables consist of the following at June 30, 2018; 

Individual Funds 

General Fund 
Special Revenue Fund: 

Loan Fund 
Grant Funds 

Capital Projects Fund 
Enterprise Funds: 

Building Code Fund 
Information Technology Fund 

Interfund 
Receivables 

$ 2,219,847 

410,000 

857,060 

3,847 

Interfund 
Payables 

$ 1,267,072 

596,358 
196,158 
768,072 

9,074 
654.020 

Total $ 3,490,754 $ 3,490,754 

The balances above resulted from the time lag between the dates the (I) interfund goods 
and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are 
recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between fimds are made. 

Note 5 - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year" ended June 30, 2018 was as follows: 

Balance Balance 
Additions Deletions 

Governmental Activities: 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 
Fumiture, fixtures, and equipment 

$ 4,241,791 $ 
526,137 

22,782 
23,685 

$ 
(5,460) 

$ 4,264,573 
544,362 

Total capital assets being depreciated 4,767,928 46,467 (5,460) 4,808,935 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings 
Fumiture, fixtures, and equipment 

(391,423) 
(446,551) 

(89,386) 
(24,710) 5,460 

(480,809) 
(465,801) 

Total accumulated depreciation (837,974) (114,096) 5,460 (946,610) 

Total governmental activities capital 
assets, net $ 3,929,954 $ (67,629) $ $ 3,862,325 
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Note 5 - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
Balance 

Additions Deletions 
Balance 

June 30, 2018 
Btisincss-tvnc Activificjs; 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment $ 
Intangible assets 

749,614 $ 
1.588.498 

125,367 $ 
313,557 

(95,711) $ 779.270 
1.902.055 

Total capital assets being depreciated 2,338.112 438.924 (95,711) 2,681,325 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Fumitme. fixtures, and equipment 
bitangible assets 

(634.725) 
(622.173) 

(71,900) 
(157.032) 

95,711 (610,914) 
(779.205) 

Total accumulated depreciation (1.256,898) (228.932) 95.711 (1.390.119) 

Total governmental activities capital 
assets, net $ 1,081,214 $ 209,992 $ $ 1,291,206 

During 2018, the Coimnission recognized $114,096 of depreciation and amortization 
expense in governmental activities and reported it in the general economic development 
and assistance programs. 

Note 6 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

At June 30, 2018, the Commission had accounts payable reported in the Governmental 
Activities of $443,148 and $72,059 in Business-type Activities. The General Fund pays 
all Capital Projects Fund, Loan Fund and Grant Fund expenditures therefore the table 
below also reports the incurred charges in the Capital Projects Fund, Loan Fund and Grant 
Fund. 

Personal 
Services Vendors Total 

Governmental Activities: 
General Fund 
Loan Fund 
Grant Fund 
Capital Projects Fund 

$ 46,664 $ 38,929 
692 

245,093 
111,770 

$ 85,593 
692 

245,093 
111,770 

Total governmental activities 46,664 396,484 443,148 

Business-Type Activities: 
Regional Building Code Fund 
Information Technology Fund 

15,985 
20,572 

7,181 
28,321 

23,166 
48,893 

Total business-type activities 36,557 35,502 72,059 

Totals $ 83,221 $ 431,986 $ 515,207 
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Note 7 - NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Non-current liabilities at June 30, 2018 consisted of accumulated annual leave (vacation 
pay) amounts vested with employees, net pension liability and certificates of 
indebtedness. The following is a summaiy of changes in the non-current liabilities of the 
Commission for the year ended June 30, 2018: 

Balance Balance Due Within 
July 1,2017 Additions Retirements June 30,2018 1 year 

Governmental Activities 
2014 Certificates of 

indebtedness $ 142,858 $ - $ (35,714) $ 107,144 $ 35,714 
Net pension liability 1,588,539 2,488 - 1,591,027 
Compensated absences 77,826 9,126 - 86,952 69,176 

Business-Type Activities 
Net pension liability 1,782,299 - (141,350) 1,640,949 
Compensated absences 63,702 12,953 ^ 76,655 56,995 

Totals $ 3,655,224 $ 24,567 $ (177,064) $ 3,502,727 $ 161,885 

Fimding of accumulated annual leave is to be provided from revenues of various funds, 
except when disallowed by grant program, at the time paid. Accumulated armual leave 
disallowed by grant programs is paid by the General Fund. Funding of the net pension 
liability is provided by the fund that incurs the related payroll. Funding of the payments 
for the certificates of indebtedness is to be provided by the General Fund. 

On May 14, 2014, the Commission issued $250,000 of Certificates of Indebtedness, 
Series 2014A for the purpose of making capital improvements. The certificates are 
secured by a pledge of revenue. The certificates mature on May 1, 2021 and with an 
interest rate of 4.50%. Interest payments aie due quaiterly on February 1, May 1, August 
1, and November 1. Principal is due annually on May 1. 

Fiscal 
Year Certificates of Indebtedness 

Maturity Principal Interest Total 

2019 $ 35,714 $ 4,821 $ 40,535 
2020 35,715 3,214 38,929 
2021 35,715 1,607 37,322 

Totals $ 107,144 $ 9,642 $ 116,786 
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Note 8 - UNEARNED REVENUES 

Unearned revenues are reported in the governmental and business-type activities. In the 
General Fund unearned revenue represents advances on governmental grants at June 30, 
2018. While unearned revenues reported in the Information Technology Fund represents 
advance payments from customers for the use of software. Building Code Fund represents 
the advance payments from other governmental entities for expedited review of building 

Note 9 -

plans. For the year ended June 30, 2018 the unearned revenue activity consisted of the 
following; 

Information Building 
General Technology Code 

Fund Fund Fund 

Balance June 30, 2017 $ 89,359 $ 25,489 $ 
Advances 69,987 84,446 50,000 
Earnings (79,971) (17,015) 

Balance June 30, 2018 $ 79,375 $ 92,920 $ 50,000 

RECONCILIATION OF TRANSFERS 

A reconciliation of operating transfers for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows: 
Transfers Transfers 

In Out 

Governmental Funds 
General Fund: 

Loan Fund $ - $ 3,278 
Capital Projects Fund - -
Grant Fund 126,198 117,940 
Debt Service Fund - 42,143 
Building Code Fund 118,555 -

Total 244.753 163,361 

Loan Fund: 
General Fund 3,278 -
Loan Fund 298.783 298,783 

Total 302,061 298.783 

Grant Fund 
General Fund 117,940 126,198 

Debt Sei-vice Fund 
General Fund 42,143 -

Proprietary Funds 
Building Code Fund 

General Fund - 118,555 

Grand Total $ 706,897 $ 706,897 
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Note 9 - RECONCILIATION OF TRANSFERS (Continued) 

Transfers aie used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires 
collecting them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them and (2) use 
unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted 
for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorization. 

Note 10- RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to workers' compensation; 
torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; eiTors and omissions; and natmal 
disasters for which the Commission canies commercial insmance. No settlements were 
made during the year that exceeded the Commission's insurance coverage. 

Note 11- PENSION PLAN 

Plan Description. The Commission contributes to the Municipal Employees Retirement 
System of Louisiana - Plan B (the System), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension plan. The System was originally established by Act 356 of the 1954 
regular session of the Legislature of the State of Louisiana. The System provides benefits 
to employees of all incorporated villages, towns and cities within the State which do not 
have their own retirement system and which elect to become members of the System. The 
Municipal Employees Retirement System of Louisiana issues a publicly available 
fmancial report that includes fmancial statements and requiied supplementary 
infoimation. That report may be obtained by writing to the Municipal Employees 
Retirement System of Louisiana, 7937 Office Paik Boulevard, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
70809. 

Benefits Provided. The System provides retirement, defened retirement, disability and 
death benefits. Retirement benefits are generally equal to 2.0% of the member's monthly 
average final compensation multiplied by the years of creditable service. Members hired 
before Januaiy 1, 2013 can retire providing the member meets one of the following 
criteria; any age with thirty years of creditable service, age sixty with a minimum of ten 
or more years of creditable semce, any age with ten yeai s of creditable service eligible 
for disability benefits, or survivor's benefits requiring five years of creditable service at 
death of the member. Members hired on or after Januaiy 1, 2013 may retire providing 
the member meets one of the following: age sixty-seven with seven or more years of 
creditable semce, age sixty-two with ten or more years of creditable service, age fifty-
five with thirty or more years of creditable service, or any age with twenty-five years of 
creditable service, exclusive of military seiwice and unused side leave. However, any 
member retiring under the final listed criteria shall have the benefit actuarially reduced 
from the earliest age of which the member would be entitled to a vested deferred benefit 
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Note 11 - PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

under any provision of this section, if the member had continued in semce to that age. 
The State Legislature authorized the System to establish a Deferred Retirement Option 
Plan (DROP). When a member enters DROP their status changes from active to retired 
even though they continue to work and draw their salaiy for up to three years. During 
participation in DROP, employer contributions continue but employee contributions 
cease. Upon termination, of employment or the end of the specified DROP period, a 
participant may receive at their option a lump sum equal to the payments in their account 
or an annuity based upon the account balance. The election to participate in DROP is 
irrevocable once participation begins and monthly retirement benefits are paid in an 
interest earning DROP fund. Members with 10 or more years of service who become 
disabled may receive retirement benefits determined in the same marmer as retirement 
benefits. Death benefits are payable to eligible surviving dependents based on the 
deceased member's compensation and the dependent's relationship to the deceased 
member. The System provides permanent benefit increases, cost of living adjustments 
(COLA) as approved by the State legislature. 

Contributions. According to state statute, contribution requirements for all employers 
are actuarially determined each year. For the years ended Jrme 30, 2018 and 2017, the 
actual employer contribution rate was 13.25% and 11.00%, respectively. 

In accordance with state statute, the System receives ad valorem taxes and state revenue 
sharing funds. These additional sources of income are used as employer contributions 
and are considered support from non-employer contributing entities, but are not 
considered special funding situations. 

Contributions to the System from the Commission were $358,559 for the year ended Jrme 
30, 2018. 

Pension Liabilities. At June 30, 2018, the Commission reported a liability of $3,231,975 
for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was 
measured as of June 30, 2017 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net 
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The 
Commission's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the 
Commission's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 
30, 2017, the Commission's proportion was 3.735%, which was a decrease of .331% from 
its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016. 

Pension Expense. For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Commission recognized 
pension expense of $612,562. 
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Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions. At June 30, 2018, the Commission reported defeiTed outflows of resources 
and defened inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Defened 
Outflows 

of Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows 

of Resources 

Difference between expected 
and actual experience 

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments 

Changes in proportion share 
Change in assumptions 
Commission contributions subsequent to the 

measm ement date 

$ 16,930 $ (70,162) 

(146,465) 
680,962 
145,414 
142,307 

358,559 

$ 1,344,172 $ (216,627) 

The Commission reported $358,559 as defeiTed outflows of resources related to pensions 
resulting from Commission contiibutions subsequent to the measurement date will be 
recognized as a reduction of the Net Pension Liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. 
Deferred inflows of resources and defen ed outflows of resources related to pensions will 
be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

For The 
Year Ended 
June 30th, 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

Total 

Amount 

$ 354,532 
282,468 
101,353 
30,633 

$ 768,986 
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Actuarial Assumptions. A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in 
deteimining the total pension liability as of June 30, 2017 are as follows: 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Actuarial Assumptions 

Expected Remaining 
Service Lives 

Investment Rate of Return 
Projected Salary Increases 
Mortality Rates 

Cost of Living 
Adjustments 

June 30, 2017 
Entry Age Normal 

4 years. 
7,40%, net of investment expense. 
5.00% (2.775% inflation, 2.225% merit). 
RP-2000 Employee Sex Distinct 
Mortality Table for active members/ RP-
2000 Disabled Lives Mortality Table for 
disabled annuitants / RP-2000 Healthy 
Annuitant Sex Distinct Mortality Table for 
healthy annuitants. 

The present value of future retirement 
benefits is based on benefits currently 
being paid by the System and includes 
previously granted cost of living increases. 
The present values do not include 
provisions for potential future increases 
not yet authorized by the Board of 
Trustees. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using 
a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of 
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are 
developed for each major asset class. These ranges aie combined to produce the long-
teim expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the 
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation of 2.60% and an 
adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. The resulting expected long-term 
rates of return is 7.20% for the year ended June 30, 2017. Estimates of arithmetic real 
rates of return for each major asset class based on the Fund's target asset allocation as of 
June 30, 2017 are on the next page: 
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Asset Class 
T arget 

Allocation 

Long-Term 
Expected 
Real Rate 
of Return 

Public equity 
Public fixed income 
Alternatives 

50.00% 
35.00% 
15.00% 

2.30% 
1.60% 
0.70% 

Total 100.00% 4.60% 

Inflation 2.60% 

Expected Arithmetic 
Nominal Rate 7.20% 

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measuie the collective pension liability was 
7.40%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
contributions from plan members will be made at the current contiibution rates and that 
contributions from participating employers will be made at the actuarially determined 
rates approved by Public Retirement System's Actuarial Committee. Based on those 
assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term 
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected 
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Commissions Proportionate Share of the Collective Net Pension 
Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate. The following presents the Commission's 
proportionate share of the collective net pension liability using the discount rate of 7.40%, 
as well as what the Commission's proportionate share of the net pension liability would 
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower (6.40%) 
or one percentage-point higher (8.40%) than the current rate: 

Commission's proportionate share 
share of the net pension liability 

1.00% 
Decrease 
(6.40%) 

Current 
Discount 

Rate 
(7.40%) 

1.00% 
Increase 
(8.40%) 

$4,181,814 $3,231,975 $2,421,420 
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. The Municipal Employees Retirement System of 
Louisiana has issued a stand-alone audit report on their financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2017. Access to the report can be found on the Louisiana Legislative 
Auditor's website, www.lla.la.uov. 

Note 12 - COMPENSATION OF COMMISSIONERS 

Commissioners for South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. received 
no compensation during the yeai" ended June 30, 2018. 

Note 13- CONTINGENCIES 

The Commission received funding under grants from various federal and state 
governmental agencies. The agency grants specify the pmpose for which the grant monies 
are to be used; the grants aie subject to audit by the granting agency or its representative. 

Note 14 - SUBSQUENT EVENTS 

Management evaluates events occurring subsequent to the date of financial statements in 
determining the accounting for and disclosure of transactions and events that effect the 
fmancial statements. Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 20, 2018 
which is the date the fmancial statements were available to be issued. 
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Exhibit N 

SCHEDULE OF THE COMMISSION'S PROPORTIONATE 
SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

June 30, 2018 

2018 2017 2016 

Commission's proportion of the 
net pension liability 3.735% 4.066% 3.724% 

Commission's proportionate share of the 
net pension liability $ 3,231,975 $ 3,370,838 $ 2,531,092 

Commission's covered-employee payroll $ 2,772,614 $ 2,987,763 $ 2,584,039 

Commission's proportionate share of the 
net pension liability as a percentage of 
its covered-employee payroll 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 
of the total pension liability 63.49% 63.34% 68.71% 
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SCHEDULE OF COMMISSION CONTRIBUTIONS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

June 30, 2018 

2018 2017 2016 

Contractually required contributions $ 358,559 $ 304,987 $ 283,837 

Contributions in relation to the 
contractually required contribution (358,559) (304,987) (283,837) 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ $ $ 

Commission's covered payroll $ 2,706,103 $ 2,772,614 $ 2,987,763 

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 13.25% 11.00% 9.50% 

56 



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SECTION 



LOAN PROGRAMS 

EPA Brownfield Revolving Loan Program - accounts for and report receipts and uses of grant 
funds received from the United States Environmental Protection Agency which are restricted to uses 
specified in the grant documents. 

Economic Development Administration Revolving Loan Program - accounts for and reports 
receipts and uses of grant funds received from the United States Department of Commerce 
(Economic Development Administration) to operate a revolving loan program. 

Louisiana Economic Development Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Phase I Program 
- accounts for and reports receipts and uses of Phase 1 of Louisiana Department of Economic 
Development grant funds for the disbursement of Community Development Block Grants provided 
by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

Louisiana Economic Development Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Phase II 
Program - accounts for and reports receipts and uses of Phase II of Louisiana Department of 
Economic Development grant funds for the disbursement of Community Development Block 
Grants provided by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

Louisiana Economic Development Revolving Capital Program - accounts for and reports 
receipts and uses of Louisiana Department of Economic Development grant funds for the 
disbursement of Community Development Block Grants provided by United States Department of 
Housing and Urban Development. 

Louisiana Economic Development Innovation Loan Program - accounts for and report receipts 
and uses of Louisiana Department of Economic Development grant funds which is provided from 
the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development, frmds are restricted to uses 
specified in the grant documents. 

Louisiana Economic Innovation Revolving Capital Program - accounts for and reports receipts 
and uses of Louisiana Department of Economic Development grant funds for the disbursement of 
Community Development Block Grants provided by the United States Department of Housing and 
Urban Development to operate a revolving loan program. 

Louisiana Economic Development District #4 Revolving Capital Program - accounts for and 
reports receipts and uses of Louisiana Department of Economic Development grant funds for the 
disbursement of Community Development Block Grants provided by United States Department of 
Housing and Urban Development. 
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LOAN PROGRAMS 
(Continued) 

St. John the Baptist Grant & Loan Program - accounts for and reports receipts and uses of 
Louisiana Department of Economic Development disaster recovery giant funds which provided 
fi om the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development to operate a revolving loan 
program. 

Restore Louisiana Small Business Program - accounts for and reports receipts and uses of Restore 
Louisiana Small Business grant funds for the disbursement of Community Development Block 
Grants provided by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
LOAN PROGRAMS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

Assets 
Cash 
Receivables: 

Economic loans 
Due from other governments 
Due from other funds 
Prepaids other 
Deposits 

Total assets and other debits 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenditures 
Due to other funds 

Total liabilities 

Fund Balance 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 

Total fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

June 30,2018 

Louisiana Louisiana 
Economic Economic 

EPA Economic Development Development 
Brownfield Development Small Business Small Business 
Revolving Administration Recovery Recovery 

Loan Revolving Loan and Grant Loan and Grant 
Program Loan Program Phase 1 Program Phase 11 Program 

$ 89,933 $ 642,419 $ 1,501 $ 1 

829,160 1,116,686 1 
4,752 

- -
-

$ 923,845 $ 1,759,105 $ 1,501 $ 2 

$ 
4,752 

4,752 

$ 829,160 $ 1,116,686 $ 1 
89,933 642,419 $ 1,501 1 

919,093 1,759,105 1,501 2 

$ 923,845 $ 1,759,105 $ 1,501 $ 2 
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Schedule 1 

Louisiana Louisiana Louisiana 
Economic Louisiana Economic Economic 

Development Economic Innovation District #4 St. John Restore 
Revolving Innovation Revolving Revolving Grant and Louisiana Total 

Capital Loan Capital Capital Loan Small Business Loan 
Program Program Program Program Program Program Fund 

$ 808,072 $ 233,584 $ 506,380 $ 2,228,963 $ 272,143 $ 156,321 $ 4,939,317 

3,068,535 862,399 793,378 563,708 651,566 17,341,832 25,227,265 
- - - - 8,543 547,916 561,211 
- - - 410,000 - - 410,000 
- - - - - 90 90 
- - - - - 1,318 1,318 

$ 3,876,607 $ 1,095,983 $ 1,299,758 $ 3,202,671 $ 932,252 $ 18,047,477 $ 31,139,201 

$ 33 $ 659 $ 692 
- $ 25,737 565,869 596,358 

33 25,737 566,528 597,050 

3,068,535 $ 862,399 $ 793,378 563,708 651,566 17,341,832 25,227,265 
808,072 233,584 506,380 2,638,930 254,949 139,117 5,314,886 

3,876,607 1,095,983 1,299,758 3,202,638 906,515 17,480,949 30,542,151 

$ 3,876,607 $ 1,095,983 $ 1,299,758 $ 3,202,671 $ 932,252 $ 18,047,477 $ 31,139,201 
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - LOAN PROGRAMS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

June 30,2018 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Interest earned 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Economic development and assistance: 
Personal services 
Supplies and materials 
Other services and charges 
Grant Disbursements 
Provision for doubtful loans 

Capital Expenditures 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

Louisiana Louisiana 
Economic Economic 

EPA Economic Development Development 
Brownfleld Development Small Business Small Business 
Revolving Administratior Recovery Recovery 

Loan Revolving Loan and Grant Loan and Grant 
Program Loan Program Phase I Program Phase II Program 

$ 16,254 

10,148 $ 55,812 $ 28 
986 2,027 $ 100 1 

27,388 57,839 100 29 

15,867 
788 - - -

3,837 29,171 - -
10,600 - -

- 88,819 73,152 -

31,092 117,990 73,152 

(3,704) (60,151) (73,052) 29 

3,251 
- - (5,500) (3,571) 

3,251 (5,500) (3,571) 

(453) (60,151) (78,552) (3,542) 

919,546 1,819,256 80,053 3,544 

$ 919,093 $ 1,759,105 $ 1,501 $ 2 
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Schedule 2 

Louisiana Louisiana Louisiana 
Economic Louisiana Economic Economic 

Development Economic Innovation Innovation St. John Restore 
Revolving Innovation Revolving District #4 Grant and Louisiana Total 

Capital Loan Capital Capital Loan Small Business Loan 
Program Program Program Program Program Program Fund 

$ 311,652 $ 18,244,561 $ 18,572,467 
$ 308,021 - - 308,021 

149,869 $ 22,680 $ 29,850 $ 52,170 6,725 - 327,282 
16,167 4,112 1,401 7,630 1,359 - 33,783 

474,057 26,792 31,251 59,800 319.736 18,244,561 19,241,553 

31,584 645,547 692,998 
- - - - 254 19,554 20,596 

177,497 28 53,406 79,661 20,579 95,794 459,973 
- - 48,227 - 58,827 

465,432 282,769 112,196 758,853 - - 1,781,221 
- - - - 2,717 2,717 

642,929 282,797 165,602 838,514 100,644 763,612 3,016,332 

(168,872) (256,005) (134,351) (778,714) 219,092 17,480,949 16,225,221 

9,071 28 289,712 302,062 
- (289,713) - - - - (298,784) 

9,071 (289,685) 289.712 3,278 

(159,801) (545,690) 155,361 (778,714) 219,092 17,480,949 16,228,499 

4.036.408 1,641,673 1,144,397 3.981,352 687,423 14,313,652 

$ 3,876,607 $ 1,095,983 $ 1,299,758 $ 3,202,638 $ 906,515 ~ 17,480,949 $ 30,542,151 
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GRANT PROGRAMS 

Economic Development Administration Grant Program - accounts for and report receipts and 
uses of grant funds received from the United States Department of Commerce (Economic 
Development Administration) which are restricted to uses as specified in the grant documents. 

MPO Transit Planning Services Grant Program - accounts for and report receipts and uses of 
grant funds received from the State of Louisiana, Department of Transportation and Development 
Public Transportation Section, which are restricted to uses as specified in the contract documents. 

MPO Highway Services Grant Program - accounts for and report receipts and uses of grant funds 
received from the State of Louisiana, Department of Transportation and Development, which are 
restricted to uses as specified in the contract documents. 

EPA Brownfield Petroleum Assessment Part II Grant Program - accounts for and report 
receipts and uses of grant funds received from the United States Environmental Protection Agency 
which are restricted to uses specified in the grant documents. 

EPA Brownfield Hazardous Site Assessment Part H Grant Program - accounts for and report 
receipts and uses of grant funds received from the United States Environmental Protection Agency 
which are restricted to uses specified in the giant documents. 

Delta Regional Authority Grant Program - accounts for and report receipts and uses of grant 
funds received from Delta Regional Authority. 

EPA River Region Waste Water Grant Program - accounts for and report receipts and uses of 
grant funds received from the United States Environmental Protection Agency which are restricted 
to those uses as specified in the contract documents. 

EPA Clean Water Action Plan - accounts for and report receipts and uses of grant funds received 
from the United States Environmental Protection Agency which are restricted to uses as specified 
in the grant documents. 

Louisiana Wildlife and Fisheries Survey Assistance Grant Program - accounts for and report 
receipts and uses of giant funds received from the State of Louisiana Department of Wildlife and 
Fisheries which are restricted to uses specified in the grant documents. 

New Freedom Program - accounts for and report receipts and uses of grant funds received from 
the United States Department of Transportation Federal Transit Administration which are restricted 
to uses specified in the grant documents. 
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GRANT PROGRAMS 
(Continued) 

DOTD Regional Highway Safety Plan Program - accounts for and report receipts and uses of 
grant funds received from the State of Louisiana, Department of Transportation and Development, 
which are restricted to uses as specified in the contract documents. 

Regional Human Services Transportation Plan - accounts for and report receipts and uses of 
grant funds received from the State of Louisiana, Depaitment of Transportation and Development, 
which are restricted to uses as specified in the contiact documents. 

DOTD Travel Demand Management Program - accounts for and report receipts and uses of grant 
funds received from the State of Louisiana, Department of Transportation and Development, which 
are restricted to uses as specified in the contract documents. 

DOTD FHWA Civic Center Blvd @ Valhi Blvd Study in Terrebonne Parish - accounts for and 
reports receipts and uses of gi'ant funds received from the State of Louisiana, Depaitment of 
Transportation and Development Public Transportation Section, which are restricted to uses as 
specified in the contiact documents. 
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
GRANT PROGRAMS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

June 30, 2018 

Economic 
Development 

Administration 
Grant Program 

Assets 
Receivables 

Miscellaneous 
Due from other governmental 

units 
Prepaid other 

Total assets 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued 

expenditures 
Due to other funds 

Total liabilities 

Fund Balance 
Nonspendable 

$ 1,469 

$ 1,469 

$ 1,469 

Total liabilities and fund 
balance $ 1,469 

MPO 
Transit 

Planning 
Services 

Grant 
Progriun 

$ 472 

2,687 

3,159 

3,159 

MPO 
Highway 
Services 

Grant 
Program 

$ 3,960 

61,833 

$ 3,159 $ 65,793 

80 
65,713 

65,793 

EPA EPA 
Brownfield Browntleld Delta 
Petroleum Hazardous Site Regional EPA 

Assessment Assessment Authority River Region 
Part Two Part Two Grant Wastewater 

Grant Program Grant Program Program Grant Program 

27,415 $ 31,121 $ 72,613 

$ 6.737 

$ 27,415 

$ 24,022 
3,393 

27,415 

31.121 $ 6.737 $ 72.613 

$ 22,175 $ 
8.946 6.737 

31.121 6,737 

$ 68.745 
3,868 

72.613 

$ 3,159 .$ 65,793 $ 27,415 $ 31.121 $ 6.737 $ 72,613 
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Schedule 3 

EPA 
Clean Water 

Louisiana 
Wildlife 

and 
Fisheries 
Survey 

Assistance 
New 

Freedom 

DOTD 
Regional 

Regional 
Human 

DOTD 
Travel 

Demand 

DOTD 
FHWA 

Civic Ctr & 

Action Plan Grant Program Program Sal'cty Plan 
Highway Transportation Management Valhi Blvd 

Plan Program Study 
Other 

Programs 

Total 
Grant 
Fund 

$ 3,244 

130,054 $ 62,374 

133,298 $ 62,374 $ 

$ 10,873 

$ 640 $ 805 $ 1,250 

2,297 22,876 

$ 10,873 $ 2,937 $ 23,681 1.250 $ 

$ 141,520 

299.731 
1,469 

$ 442.720 

$ 130,054 
3,244 

133,298 

17 
62,357 

62,374 

10,873 

10,873 

2.937 

2.937 

23,681 

23,681 

1,250 

1.250 

$ 245,093 
196,158 

441.251 

1,469 

$ 133.298 $ 62,374 $ 10,873 $ 2,937 $ 23,681 $ 1,250 $ 442,720 
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COIVIBINING STATEMENT OF RKVIM KS. KXI'IM)! I t RKS AND 
CHANCES IN FUND BALANCE - GRANT PROGRAMS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

June 30,2018 

MPO EPA EPA 
Transit MPO Brownfield Brownfield 

Ecotiomic Planning Highway Petroleum Hazardous Site Delta EPA 
Development Services Services Assessment Assessment Regional River Region 

Administration Grant Grant Part Two Part Two Authority Waste Water 
Grant Progratn Program Program Grant Program Grant Program Grant Progrant Grant Program 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental $ 92,866 $ 46,427 $ 299,931 $ 71,963 $ 101,053 $ 24,000 $ 128.859 
Charges for services - - - - - 17,337 -
Miscellaneous 5,887 - - - - -

Total revenues 98,753 46,427 299,931 71,963 101.053 41.337 128.859 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Economic development and assistance; 
Personal services 175,373 36,345 246,105 10,892 11,088 41.520 3,468 
Supplies and materials 1,677 47 8,098 33 32 3 -
Other services and charges 32.210 5.936 33,661 61.038 89,933 4,505 125,391 
Repairs and maintenance - - - - - - -

Capital expenditures . - - . - - . 

Total expenditures 209.260 42.328 287,864 71,963 101,053 46,028 128,859 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (110.507) 4,099 12,067 - (4,691) -

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Operating transfers in 111.976 - - - - 4,691 -
Operating transfers out (4,099) (12,067) - - -

Total other financing 
sources(uses) 111,976 (4.099) (12,067) - - 4,691 . 

Net Change in Fund Balance 1.469 - - - - • -

Fund Balance 
Beginning of year - . - - - • . 

End of year $ 1.469 $ $ $ $ $ $ 
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Schedule 4 

LA Wildlife 
and DOTD DOTD 

Fisheries DOTD Regional Travel FHWA 
EPA Survey New Regional Human Demand CivieCtr& 

Clean Water Assistance Freedom Highway Transport Managem Valhi Blvd Other 
Action Plan Gram Program Prueriitn Salcly Plan Plan Program Study Programs Total 

$ 133.298 $ - $ 3 $ - $ 15,894 $ 22,256 $ 1,250 $ 4,348 S 942,148 
311,075 - 122,185 .... 450,597 

106,408 - - - - - 112,295 

239,706 311,075 3 122,185 15,894 22,256 1,250 4,348 1,505,040 

3,216 

236,490 

186,653 
1,400 

14,580 85 

84,359 
678 

35,564 

14,929 
1 

1,298 

20,999 
1 

1,259 1,562 

4,071 

813 

839,018 
11,970 

644,325 

239,706 202,633 85 120,601 16,228 22,259 1,562 4,884 1,495,313 

108,443 (82) 1,384 (334) (3) (312) (536) 9,727 

-
(108,442) 

88 
(6) (1,584) 

334 3 312 536 117,940 
(126,198) 

(108.442) 82 (1,584) 334 3 312 536 (8,258) 

1.469 

1,469 
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Schedule 5 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION. BENEFITS AND OTHER 
PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

June 30, 2018 

Agency Head Name: Kevin P. Belanger 

Purpose Amount 
Salary $ 158,090 
Benefits - insurance 20,359 
Benefits - retirement 20,947 
Benefits - other 
Car allowance 9,900 
Phone Allowance 1,320 
Vehicle provided by government 
Per diem 
Reimbursements 5,469 
Travel 5,214 
Registration fees 1,150 
Conference travel 
Continuing professional education fees 
Housing 
Unvouchered expenses 
Meals 3,704 

$ 226,153 
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SPECIAL REPORTS OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



Bourgeois Bennett 
^^CliKTIFIED PU8UC ACCOUNTANTS | CONSULTANTS 

A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Commissioners, 
South Cential Planning & Development Commission, Inc., 

Houma, Louisiana. 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
State of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standai ds issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund infoimation of South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc., (the Commission), 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements which 
collectively comprise the Commission's basic financial statements and have issued our report 
thereon dated December 20, 2018. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In plaiming and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the 
Commission's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Commission's intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Commission's intemal control. 

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the Commission's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identity all deficiencies in internal control that 
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain decencies 
in internal control, described in the accompany schedule of findings and questioned cost that we 
consider to be a material weakness, 2018-001. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Commission's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the deteimination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of om- test disclosed instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that is required to be reported under Govenunent Auditing 
Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs 
as item 2018-001. 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc.'s Response to Findings 

The Commission's response to the findings identified in om" audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Commission's response was not 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, 
we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The puipose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal conti ol and 
compliance and results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Commission's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Certified Public Accountants. 

Houma, Louisiana, 
December 20, 2018. 
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Bourgeois Bennett 
^^CERTIFIED PUaUC ACCOUNTANTS | CONSULTANTS 

A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Board of Commissioners, 
South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc., 

Houma, Louisiana. 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc.'s, (the 
Commission) compliance with the types of compliance requuements described in the 0MB 
Compliance Supplement that could have a duect and material effect on each of the Commission's 
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. The Commission's major federal 
programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, 
contracts and giants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Commission's major 
federal programs based on om- audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Compti'oller General of the United States; and Title 2 U.S. Code 
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements Cost Principles and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assmance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements refeixed to above that could have a direct 
and material effect on a major federal program occuned. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence about the Commission's compliance with those requirements and performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Commission's compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the Commission complied in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements refeiTed to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of 
its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance which are 
required to be reported in accordance with the Unifonn Guidance and which are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2018-001. Our opinion on each 
major federal program is not modified with respect to these matters. The Commission's response to 
the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. The Commission's response was not subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the 
response. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Commission is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements refeiTed to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Commission's internal control over 
compliance with the requuements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major program and to test and report on 
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the puipose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal contiol over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over 
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal contiol over compliance was for the limited puipose described 
in the fu st paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weakness or significant deficiencies and therefore, 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance, as described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs items 2018-001 that we consider to be material 
weaknesses that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist 
that have not been identified. 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc.'s Response to Findings 

The Commission's response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our 
audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The 
Commission's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope 
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purposes. 

Certified Public Accountants. 

Houma, Louisiana, 
December 20, 2018. 
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule 6 

Federal Grantor/Pass-
Throuuh Orniitor/Proerain Title 

U.S. Department of Commerce: 
Economic Development Administration; 

Support for Planning Organizations 

Sudden and Severe Economic Dislocation 
Adjustment Revolving Loan Fund 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

11.302 
11.302 

11.307 

Federal Award/ 
Pass-Through 

Entity Identifying 
Number 

Expenditures 
Federal To 

E.xpendilurcs Suhrecipienis 

EDI6AUS3020002 $ 72.000 
08-86-05073 20,866 

08-59-02912.01 2,308,153 

Total Department of Commerce 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development: 
Office of Community Planning and Development: 

Pas.s-Thr()ut:h I'avnients: 
Louisiana Dcparlmenl of Economic Develonmcnt: 

Community Development Block Grant 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program - Phase I 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program - Phase II 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program-

Revolving Capital Fund 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program-

Innovation Program 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program-

Innovation Revolving Capital Fund 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program-

Acadiana Revolving Capital Fund 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program-

St. John the Baptist Grant and Loan Fund 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program-

St. John the Baptist Grant and Loan Fund - Administration 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program-

Restore Louisiana Small Business Program 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program-

Restore Louisiana Small Business Program - Administration 

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

2.401,019 

14.228 07096A/645872 79,152 
14.228 700587/645872 2,609 

14.228 5.873.091 

14.228 1,999,288 

14.228 1,082,609 

14.228 2,031,581 

14.228 96624601 834.367 

14.228 96624601 70,519 

14.228 I6-DL-22-000I 17.498,144 

14.228 I6-DL-22-000I 745,317 

30,216,677 
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Schedule 6 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Federal Grantor/Pass-
Through Orantor/ProRram Title 

U.S. Department of Commerce: 
Economic Development Administration: 

Support for Planning Organizations 

Sudden and Severe Economic Dislocation 
Adjustment Revolving Loan Fund 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

Federal Award/ 
Pass-Through 

Entity Identifying 
Number 

Expenditures 
Federal To 

Expenditures Subrccipienls 

11.302 ED16AUS3020002 
11.302 08-86-05073 

11.307 08-59-02912.01 

Total Department of Commerce 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development: 
Office of Community Planning and Development: 

Pa ss-fh rough Pavmen I s: 
Louisiana Denartmenl of Economic Develoomcm: 

Community Development Block Grant 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program - Phase 1 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program - Phase 11 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program-

Revolving Capital Fund 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program-

Innovation Program 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program-

Innovation Revolving Capital Fund 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program-

Acadiana Revolving Capital Fund 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program-

St. John the Baptist Grant and Loan Fund 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program-

St. John the Baptist Grant and Loan Fund - Administration 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program-

Restore Louisiana Small Business Program 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program-

Restore Louisiana Small Business Program - Administration 

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

72,000 
20,866 

2,308,153 

2,401,019 

14.228 07096A/645872 79.152 
14.228 700587/645872 2,609 

14.228 5,873,091 

14.228 1.999.288 

14.228 1,082,609 

14.228 2,031,581 

14.228 96624601 834,367 

14.228 96624601 70,519 

14.228 16-DL-22-0001 17.498.144 

14.228 16-DL-22-0001 745,317 

30,216,677 
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

South Central Planning «& Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule 6 
(Continued) 

Federal Award/ 
Federal Pass-Through Expenditures 

Federal Grantor/Pass- CFDA Entity Identify'ing Federal To 
Throuah (iranior/Profiram Title Number Number Expcndilure.s Subrecipients 

U.S. Department of Transportation: 
Federal Highway Administration: 

Pass-Throueh PaVmems: 
l.ouisiana DcDartnicnl ofTransnorlaiion and DeveloDinent; 

Highway Planning and Construction -Metropolitan Planning 20.205 H.011005 22,256 
Federal Highway Administration - Metropolitan Planning 20.205 H972275.1 233,684 

20.205 H012859 1.250 
Federal Transit Formula Grants-New Freedom 20.507 LA-90-X362 3 

Federal Transit Administration: 
Pass-'I'llrouah Pavmenls: 

l .ouisiana DenartmeiU of rransrK)rtation and DevelonmenI; 
Federal Transit Metropolitan Planning Grants 

MPO-FTA 2018 20.505 PL80-55-I8 17,316 
MPO-FTA2017 20.505 LA-2017-003 17,473 
MPO-FTA-20I8-CHSTP 20.509 LA-2017-013 10,000 
MPO-FTA-20I7-CHSTP 20.513 LA-2016-028 3,443 
MPO-FTA-2018-CHSTP 20.513 LA-2016-028 2.450 

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 307,875 

Environmental Protection Agency: 
Office of the Chief Financial Officer: 

Congressionally Mandated Projects - River Region Water 
and Wastewater Improvement Plan 66.202 XP-96624601-0 72,613 

Consolidated Grants tor the Insurlar Areas - Program Support 66.600 XP-97685601-2 133,298 
Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response: 

Brovvnfield Revolving Loan Fund 66.818 BL-96693301 868,426 
Brownfield Revolving Loan Fund- Administration 66.818 BL-96693301 16,254 
Brownfield Hazardous Site Assessment Pt. 2 66.818 BF-00F3870I-2 101.053 
Brownfield Petroleum 66.818 BF-00F38701-2 71,963 

Total Environmental Protection Agency 1,263,607 

Delta Regional Authority: 
Delta Local Development District Assistance 

Local 90.202 24,000 

U.S. Department of Homeland Security: 
Pass-ThroLiKh Payments: 

Louisiana Denartment of Homeland Sccuritv and Emeracncv Prenaredncss: 
River Bayou Parish Mutual Aid and Assistance Task Force: 

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 SHSPFY17 EQUIP 159,961 $ 159,861 
97.067 SHSPFY17 TRAIN 3,524 -

Total 

163,485 159,861 

$ 34,376,663 $ 159,861 

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

June 30, 2018 

Note I - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the SEP A) includes the 
federal award activity of the Commission under programs of the federal government for 
the year ended June 30, 2018. The information in the SEFA is presented in accordance 
with the requhements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards {Uniform Guidance). Because the SEFA presents only a selected portion of the 
operation of the Commission it is not intended to and does not present the financial 
position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the Commission. 

Note 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(1) Expenditures reported on the SEFA are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. 
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the 
Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are 
limited as to reimbursement. 

(2) The Commission has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate 
as allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

Note 3 - VALUE OF LOANS OUTSTANDING 

Loans outstanding at June 30, 2018 for the Sudden and Severe Economic Dislocation 
Adjustment Revolving Loan Program, Federal CFDA number 11.307, was $2,308,153, 
the Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Programs, Federal CFDA number 14.228, 
$29,071,452, and the Environmental Protection Agency Brownfield Revolving Loan 
Program, Federal CFDA number 66.818, $868,426. In addition, an allowance for 
uncollectible loans amounting to $2,697,731 has been recorded in the financial 
statements as of June 30, 2018. 

Note 4 - FINDINGS OF NONCOMPLIANCE 

There were no federal award findings or questioned costs reported during the audit for 
the year ended June 30, 2018. 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Section I Summary of Auditor's Results 

a) Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: unmodified 

Internal contiol over financial reporting: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? 

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are 
not considered to be a material weakness? 

Noncompliance material to consolidated 
financial statements noted? 

b) Federal Awards 

Internal contiol over major programs: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? 

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are 
not considered to be a material weakness 

X Yes No 

Yes X None reported 

X Yes No 

X Yes No 

Yes X None reported 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs unqualified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance Uniform 
Guidance ? X Yes No 

c) Identification of Major Program: 

CFDA Number 

14.228 

Name of Federal Program 

Community Development Block Gi ant/ 
State's Progiam - Small Business Recover 

Loan and Gi ant Program 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
(Continued) 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Section I Summary of Auditor's Results (Continued) 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B programs: $750.000 

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? Yes X No 

Section II Financial Statement Findings 

Internal Control 

2018-001 Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Small Business Recovery Loan And Grant Program - Revolving Capital Fund, 
Small Business Recovery Loan And Grant Program - Innovation Program, Small 
Business Recovery Loan And Grant Program - Acadiana Revolving Capital 
Fund; CFDA No. 14.228; Grant Period: Year Ended June 30, 2018. 

U.S. Department of Commerce 

Sudden and Sever Economic Dislocation - Adjustment Revolving Loan Fund; 
CFDA No. 11.307; Grant No. 08-59-02912.01; Grant Period: Year Ended June 
30, 2017. 

Criteria - The Commission is required to follow the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) in matters of accounting and reporting. GASB 
pronouncements require that assets of the Commission be reported at net realizable 
value. 

Condition - The District failed to recognize provisions of doubtful accounts 
amounting to $1,781,221 in its internal financial statements prior to audit adjustment. 

Cause - Failure of the Distiict's management to evaluate collectibility of federal 
program loans. 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
(Continued) 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Section II Financial Statement Findings (Continued) 

Internal Control (Continued) 

2018-001 Department of Housing and Urban Development (Continued) 

Effect - The District's failure to evaluate collectibility of federal program loans caused 
interim financial statements to understate expenses and overstate loan receivables. 

Recommendation - We recommend that the Commission periodically evaluate the 
collectibility of loans in its federal loan programs and adjust its interim financial 
statements accordingly. 

Compliance 

See 2018-001 above. 

Section III Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

Internal Control 

See 2018-001 above. 

Compliance 

See 2018-001 above. 

80 



REPORTS BY MANAGEMENT 



SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Section I Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Basic Financial Statements 

Internal Control 

2017-001 Recommendation - We recommend that the Commission periodically evaluate the 
collectibility of loans in its federal loan programs and adjust its interim financial 
statements. The Commission should also comply with the State budget laws by 
amending its budget to ensure the actual provision for doubtful loans does not exceed 
budgeted amounts by five percent or more. 

Management's Response - Management will periodically evaluate the collectibility 
of loans in its federal loan programs and adjust its interim financial statements. The 
Commission will also comply with the State budget laws by amending its budget to 
ensure the actual provision for doubtful loans does not exceed budgeted amounts by 
five percent or more. Unresolved, See 2018-001. 

Compliance 

See 2017-001 above. 

Section II Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards 

Internal Control and Compliance 

See 2017-001 above. 

Section III Management Letter 

A management letter was not issued in connection with the audit for the year ended June 30, 
2017. 

81 



MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Section I Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Basic Financial Statements 

Internal Control 

2018-001 Department of Housing and Urban Development (Continued) 

Recommendation - We recommend that the Commission periodically evaluate the 
collectibility of loans in its federal loan programs and adjust its interim financial 
statements accordingly. 

Management's Response - Management will periodically evaluate the collectibility 
of loans in its federal loan programs and adjust its interim financial statements. 

Compliance 

See 2018-001 above. 

Section II Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards 

Internal Control and Compliance 

See 2018-001 above. 

Section III Management Letter 

A management letter was not issued in connection with the audit for the year ended June 30, 
2018. 
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STATEWIDE 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 



Boureeois Bennett 
^^CiiRTlMl-D PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS | CONSULTANTS 

A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON 
APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Board of Commissioners 
South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

Houma, LA. 

We have performed the procedures described in the following schedule, which were agreed 
to by South Central Planning & Development Commission (the Commission) and the Louisiana 
Legislative Auditor (LLA) on the control and compliance (C/C) areas identified in the LLA's 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the year ended June 30, 2018. The Commissions 
management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with the attestation 
standards established by the AICPA and the standards contained in the Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. The sufficiency of these 
procedures is solely the responsibility of the specified users of this report. Consequently, we make 
no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures referred to above, either for the 
purpose for which this report has been requested, or for any other purpose. 

The procedures and associated findings are described in the following schedule. 

We were not engaged to, and did not conduct an examination or review, the objective of 
which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on these C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we 
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have 
been reported to you. 

The purpose of this report is to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or 
compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana 
Revised Statue 23:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

Certified Public Accountants. 

Houma, Louisiana, 
December 20, 2018. 
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SCHEDULE OF PROCEDURES AND ASSOCIATED FINDINGS 
OF THE STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

South Central Planning & Development Commission 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

The required procedures and our findings are as follows: 

Procedures performed on the Commission's written policies and procedures: 

1. Obtain the Commission's written policies and procedures and report whether those written 
policies and procedures address each of the following financial/business functions (or report that 
the Commission does not have any written policies and procedures), as applicable: 

a) Budgeting, included preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget 
Performance: Obtained and read the written policy for budget, and found it to contain the 

elements included above. 
Exceptions; There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors ai^e added to the 
vendor list; (3) the prepaiation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase 
orders; (4) controls to ensure compliance with the public bid law; and (5) documentation 
required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

Performance: Obtained and read the written policy for purchasing, and found it to contain 
the elements included above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response; Not applicable. 

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving 
Performance: Obtained and read the written policy for disbursements, and found it to 

contain the elements included above. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 

d) Receipts, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits 
Performance: Obtained and read the written policy for receipts, and foimd it to contain 

the requirements listed above. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 
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Procedures performed on the Commission's written policies and procedures: (Continued) 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving time 
and attendance records, including leave and overtime worked. 

Performance: Obtained and read the written policy for payroll and persoimel, and found 
it to contain the requirements listed above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of seiwices requiring written contracts; (2) standard terms 
and conditions; (3) legal review; (4) approval process; and (5) monitoring process 

Performance: Obtained and read written policy for contracting. 
Exceptions: Management's policy on contracting does not include a provision for legal 

review of the contracts. 
Management's response: Management will consider adding a legal review provision for 

the contracts entered into by the Commission. 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Caids, if applicable), including (1) how cards are 
to be controlled; (2) allowable business uses; (3) documentation requirements; (4) required 
approvers; and (5) monitoring card usage 

Perfonnance: Obtained and read the written policy for credit cards, and found it contained 
all requirements listed above, except as noted below. 

Exceptions: Management's policy on credit cards does not include specific transactions 
to fall under allowable business uses. 

Management's response: Management will consider adding this provision to their credit 
card policy. 

h) Travel and expense reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses; (2) dollar thresholds 
by category of expense; (3) documentation requirements; and (4) required approvers 

Performance: Obtained and read the travel and expense reimbursement policy, and found 
it contained all requirements listed above. 

Exceptions: The policy does not state dollar thresholds, but the Commission reimburses 
actual expenses and reserves the right to deny reimbursement of exorbitant or 
frivolous expenditures. 

Management's response: Not applicable. 

i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-1121; 
(2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place; (3) system to monitor possible ethics 
violations; and (4) requirement that all employees, including elected officials, armually attest 
through signature verification that they have read the entity's ethics policy. 

Performance: Inquired of management as to an ethics policy. 
Exceptions: Management confirmed there is no policy for ethics. 
Management's response: Management will consider drafting such a policy. 
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Procedures performed on the Commission's written policies and procedures: (Continued) 

j) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval; (2) EMMA reporting requirements; (3) 
debt reseive requirements; and (4) debt service requirements. 

Perfonnance: Inquired of management as to a debt service policy. 
Exceptions: Management confirmed there was no policy for debt service. 
Management's response: Management will consider drafting such a policy. 

Procedures performed on the Commission's board: 

Prior year testing resulted in no exceptions related to Commission's board. Therefore, testing 
was not required in the cunent year. 

Procedures performed on the Commission's bank reconciliations: 

2. Obtain a listing of the Commission's bank accounts from management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Management will identify the main operating account. 
Select the Commission's main operating account and select 4 additional accounts (or all accounts 
if less than 5). Select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the corresponding 
bank statement and reconciliation for each selected account, and obseiwe that: 

Perfoimance: Obtained the listing of bank accounts from management, and received 
management's representation in a sepaiate letter. Selected a month from the fiscal period, 
and obtained the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for the Office's main 
operating account. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related 
statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); 

Performance: Observed that bank reconciliations were prepared within 2 months of the 
related statement closing date. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management or a board member who 
does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation 
(e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); and 

Performance: Inspected documentation for management approvals of each bank 
reconciliation. 

Exceptions: Bank reconciliations for one checking account had two months of no 
evidence that a member of management or a board member has reviewed each bank 
reconciliation. 

Management's response: Management took corrective action and started documenting the 
approval of each bank reconciliation. 
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Procedures performed on the Commission's bank reconciliations: (Continued) 

c) If applicable, management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling 
items that have been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date. 

Perfoimance: Inspected documents for items outstanding for more than 12 months from 
statement closing date. 

Exceptions: In our observation, we noted 1 check outstanding for longer 12 months from 
the statement closing date. 

Management's response: Management investigated the check and subsequently voided 
due to item being over 12 months outstanding from the statement closing date. 

Procedures performed on the Commission's collections: 

Prior year testing resulted in no exceptions related to collections. Therefore, testing was not 
required in the cuivent year. 

Procedures performed on the Commission's non-payroll disbursements (excluding card 
purchases/payments, travel reimbursements, and petty cash purchases): 

3. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less 
than 5). 

Performance: Obtained the listing of locations that process payments, and received 
management's representation in a separate letter. The Office has only one location that 
processes payments. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 

4. For each location selected under #3 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with 
non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating 
to employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of 
employees about their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that: 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, 
and placing an order/making the purchase. 

Performance: Inspected policy manuals and inquired of management and employees as 
to requirement listed above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 
Perfoimance: Inspected policy manuals and inquired of management and employees as 

to requirement listed above. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 
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Procedures performed on the Commission's non-payroll disbursements (excluding card 
purchases/payments, travel reimbursements, and petty cash purchases): (Continued) 

c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying 
vendor files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to 
vendor files. 

Perfoimance: Inspected policy manuals and inquired of management and employees as 
to requirement listed above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the 
signed checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

Performance: Inspected policy manuals and inquired of management and employees as 
to requirement listed above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 

5. For each location selected under #3 above, obtain the Commission's non-payroll disbursement 
transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain 
management's representation that the population is complete. Select 5 disbursements for each 
location, obtain supporting documentation for each transaction and: 

a) Observe that the disbursement matched the related original invoice/billing statement. 
Performance: Obtained the disbursement and observed that the disbmsement and the 

related original invoice/billing statement were in agreement. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 

b) Observe that the disbmsement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, electionic 
logging) of segregation of duties tested under #4, as applicable. 

Performance: Obtained the disbursement documentation and observed for proper 
segregation of duties as listed under #4 above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 
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Procedures performed on the Commission's credit cards, debit cards, fuel cards, P-cards: 

6. Obtain fi om management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-
cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons who 
maintained possession of the cai'ds. Obtain management's representation that the listing is 
complete. 

Peifoimance; Obtained the listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel caids, and 
P-cards (cards) for the fiscal period, and received management's representation in a 
separate letter. The commission only has two credit cards, held by Julie Foret, CAO and 
Kevin Belanger, CEO. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 

7. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) 
that were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined 
statement for each card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain 
supporting documentation, and: 

a) Observe that there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception 
reports for excessive fuel card usage) was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone 
other than the authorized card holder. 

Performance: Obtained the monthly statement for Januaiy 2018, and obseiwed the 
statement and the purchase order indicating the approval. 

Exceptions: For credit card generally used by the Commission and held by Julie Foret, 
CAO, we observed the purchase order attached and the appropriate approval. For the 
credit card used by Kevin Belanger, CEO, we observed no approval by someone other 
than the authorized car d holder. 

Management's response: Going forwaid, the Commission will have a board member 
approve the CEO's credit card charges. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 
Performance: Traced all credit card payments and balances on the credit card statements 

in order to note if any fees were applied to balances. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 

8. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #7 above, excluding fuel 
cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement, 
and obtain supporting documentation for the hansactions (i.e. each card should have 10 
transactions subject to testing). For each transaction: observe that it is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased; (2) written documentation of the 
business/public purpose; and (3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for 
meal charges only). 
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Procedures performed on the Commission's credit cards, debit cards, fuel cards, P-cards: 
(Continued) 

a) Obsei-ve that it is supported by an original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was 
purchased, 

1) An original itemized receipt (i.e., identifies precisely what was purchased) 
Perfoimance: Traced each transaction to an original itemized receipt. 
Exceptions; There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 

2) Documentation of the business/public purpose. For meal charges, there should also be 
documentation of the individuals participating. 

Performance: Observed documentation of the puipose of each transaction. Confirmed 
that all meal charge documentation included the names of the individuals 
participating. 

Exceptions: One of the transactions reviewed did not have adequate documentation 
of the business pmpose. 

Management's response: Management will implement a documentation system for all 
meals/entertainment charges. 

Procedures performed on the Commission's travel and expense reimbursements: 

9. Obtain from management a listing of all ti avel and ti avel-related expense reimbursements during 
the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. 
Randomly select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid 
expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting 
documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected: 

Perfoimance: Obtained a list of all travel and tiavel related expense reimbursement, and 
received management's representation in a separate letter. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, agree the reimbursement rate to those rates established either 
by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration (www.gsa.gov). 

Performance: Selected 5 reimbursements and obtained the supporting documentation. 
Observed that the reimbursements were reimbursed using actual costs, not using a per 
diem. 

Exceptions: Not applicable. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 
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Procedures performed on the Commission's travel and expense reimbursements: (Continued) 

b) If reimbuised using actual costs, observe that the reimbui sement is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

Perfoimance: Selected 5 reimbursements and obtained the supporting documentation. 
Observed that the reimbursement was supported by original itemized receipt. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 

c) Obseive that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public 
purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those 
individuals participating) and other documentation required by written policy (procedure 
#lh). 

Performance: Selected 5 reimbursements and obtained the supporting documentation. 
Observed that each reimbursement has evidence of documentation of the 
business/public purpose and other documentation required by written policy. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 

d) Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other 
than the person receiving reimbursement. 

Performance: Inspected documentation to find all approvals by supervisors and/or the 
adminisbator. 

Exceptions: There was one reimbursement that did not have an approval. 
Management's response: The mileage log for the CEO was not approved, going forward, 

the Commission will have a board member approve the CEO's travel reimbursement. 

Procedures performed on the Commission's contracts: 

Prior year testing resulted in no exceptions related to contracts. Therefore, testing was not 
required in the current yeai'. 

Procedures performed on the Commission's payroll and personnel: 

Prior year testing resulted in no exceptions related to payroll and personnel. Therefore, testing 
was not required in the current year. 

Procedures performed on the Commission's ethics: 

10. Selected five employees/officials and obtain ethics compliance documentation from 
management, and: 
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Procedures performed on the Commission's ethics: (Continued) 

a) Observe that the documentation demonstrated each employee/official completed one hour of 
ethics training during the fiscal period. 

Perfonnance: Observed the ethics comse completion certificates for the five employees 
tested. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 

b) Obseiwe that the documentation demonstrated each employee/official attested through 
signature verification that he or she has read the Commission's ethics policy during the fiscal 
period. . 

Perfonnance: Inquired of management about documentation of each employee/official's 
signature verification that he or she has read the ethics policy. 

Exceptions: The Commission does not have an ethics policy as stated at If above. 
Management's response: Management will have all employees/officials attest through 

signatuie verification that he or she has read the Commission's ethics policy once the 
ethics policy is created. 

Procedures performed on the Commission's debt service: 

Prior year testing resulted in no exceptions related to debt service. Therefore, testing was not 
requued in the cuiTent year. 

Other procedures performed on the Commission: 

11. Inquire of management whether the Commission had any misappropriations of public funds or 
assets. If so, obtain/review supporting documentation and report whether the Commission 
reported the misappropriation to the legislative auditor and the commission attorney of the parish 
in which the Commission is domiciled. 

Perfonnance: Inquired of management of any misappropriations of public funds or assets, 
none were noted. 

Exceptions: Not applicable. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 

12. Obseiwe and report whether the Commission has posted on its premises and website, the notice 
required by R.S. 24:523.1. This notice (available for download or print at 
www.lla.la.gov/hotline) concerns the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of 
public funds. 

Perfoimance: Inquired and obseived such notice posted on the premises (the Commission 
does not have a website). 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
Management's response: Not applicable. 
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